
AMENDED 

MAY 15, 2023 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

Pre-Agenda Meeting – 6:00 p.m. – City Hall 2nd Floor Conference Room 

Regular Meeting 7:00 p.m. - City Hall Council Chambers 

227 S. Center Street, Statesville, NC 

I Call to Order 

II Invocation 

III Pledge of Allegiance  

IV Adoption of the Agenda  

V Code of Ethics Pg. 4 

VI Presentations & Recognitions Pg. 7 
1. Receive a presentation from representatives of the Mayor’s Youth Advisory Council.

VII Public Comment 

VIII Consent Agenda – All items below are considered to be routine by City Council and will be 
enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion on these items unless a 
Council member requests, in which event, the item will be removed from the Consent 
Agenda and considered with the other items listed in the Regular Agenda. 

A. Consider approving the May 01, 2023 Pre-Agenda and City Council meeting
minutes. (Fugett) Pg. 8

B. Consider approving a request to demolish the existing structure located at 113
Garfield Street. (Sigmon) Pg. 23

C. Consider approving 2nd reading of AX23-05, an ordinance to annex the property
located at the corner of James Farm Road and Glenway Drive. PIN #4745-78-7821
Falls Park (James Glen Multi-Family) property. (Ashley) Pg. 28

D. Consider approving a contract with Samet Corporation for the construction of the
Airport Terminal building. (Ferguson) Pg. 29

Page 1 of 109



Page 2 of 3 

 

E. Consider approving Budget Amendment #2023-32 to move the interest accrued 
up to $30,000 on a $500,000 grant from the North Carolina SCIF Fund. (Ferguson) 
Pg. 30 
 

F. Consider approving a request to transfer an insurance reimbursement in the 
amount of $32,500 to the Police Department and approval of Budget Amendment 
#2023-33. (Onley) Pg. 32 

 
REGULAR AGENDA  
 
IX Conduct a public hearing and consider approving first reading of AX23-07, an 

ordinance to annex PIN #4753-99-3612, a property located at 413 Twin Oaks Road 
submitted by Clayton Homes of Statesville. (Ashley) Pg. 34 

 
X Conduct a public hearing and consider approving first reading of rezoning request 

ZC23-05, Greenbriar Ridge, Tax Parcel #4754-23-6335; a proposal for a major 
amendment to the concept plan for the rezoning of approximately 87.39 acres located 
on E. Greenbriar Road; zoned R-8CZ Cluster for the Greenbriar Ridge subdivision. 
(Ashley) Pg. 42 

 
XI Conduct a public hearing and consider approving a Resolution of Closure and 

Declaration of Withdrawal to permanently close a portion of Wall Street. (Harrod) Pg. 
60  

 
XII Conduct a public hearing and consider approving first reading of TA23-07 Text 

Amendments to the Unified Development Code filed by the City of Statesville to amend 
Article 3 Zoning, Section 3.04 Zoning District Regulations; Table 3-1 Use Matrix. Article 
5. Supplemental Regulations Performance/Standards for Specific Uses, Section 5.04 
Primary Uses and Structures, to include subsection III. Tobacco Shops; Article 6. 
Development Standards, Section 6.05 Lighting, 1-4; and amend definitions section for: 
Hookah, Vape, E-Cigarette, Cigar and Cigarette Shop/Lounge, Tobacco Paraphernalia 
and Tobacco Product to address the lighting standards and zoning districts pertaining 
to such uses. (Ashley) Pg. 72 

 
XIII Conduct a public hearing and consider approving first reading of TA23-08, Text 

Amendments to the Unified Development Code filed by the City of Statesville to 
amend Article 2. Development Review Process, Section 2.01 Application Process, 
Table 2-1: Summary of Application Procedures, Article 3. Zoning, Section 3.04 Zoning 
District Regulations, M. O-1-Office Single Lot District, N. O & I-2-Office and 
Institutional District, O.-1 – Neighborhood Service District, P. B-2 – Neighborhood 
Business District, Article 5. Supplemental Regulations/Performance Standards for 
Specific Uses, Section 5.04 Primary Uses and Structures, Z. Dwellings, Planned Multi-
family Dwellings and Article 6. Development Standards, Section 6.02 Density and 
Dimensional Standards, B. Residential Density, 2. to clarify regulations for Duplexes, 
Townhomes and Multi-family in O-1, O &   I-2, B-1, and B-2 Zoning Districts. (Ashley) 
Pg. 77  

 
XIV Consider approving first reading of an ordinance to prohibit camping and improper 

use of City property. (Onley) Pg. 85  
 
XV Consider authorizing the upset bid procedure for 1203 Free Nancy Ave (PIN 4745-54-

1924.000) and 1213 Free Nancy Ave (PIN 4745-43-9618.000). (Pierce) Pg. 88 
 

Page 2 of 109



Page 3 of 3 

 

XVI Receive the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 recommended budget from the City Manager and 
Staff and set a public hearing on the budget for June 5, 2023 at 7:00 p.m. Consider 
setting Board Workshop Sessions on June 6, 2023, June 7, 2023, and June 8, 2023 
from 4:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. (Smith) Pg. 107  

 
XVII City Manager’s Report 
 
XVIII Advisory Boards and Commissions Meeting Minutes Pg. 108 
 04/12/2023 Airport Commission Meeting Minutes 
   
XIX  Other Business 
 
XX Closed Session (After Pre-Agenda if needed) 
 

XXI Adjournment 

Page 3 of 109



CODE O,F ETHICS FOR THE CITY OF STATESVILLE 
- ~ - - -

- PREAMBLE 

WHEREAS, the Constituti,on of N,orth Carolina, Article 1, Secti·on 35, reminds us that a 
'!frequent recurrence to fundamental principles is absolutely .necessary to preserve the blessings 
of liberty"; and 

WHEREAS, a spirit of honesty and forthrightness is reflected in North Carolina's state 
motto Esse quam videri, uTo be rather than to seem"; and 

WHEREAS, Section 160A-86 of the North Carolina General Statutes req 1uires local 
governing boards to a.dopt a code of e.thics; and 

W.HER.EAS, as public officials we are c.harged with uphold,ing the trust of the citizens of
this city, a.nd which obeying the law; and 

NOW, T.HEREFORE,. in recognjtion of our blessings and obligations as citizens of the 
State of North Carolina and as public officials repre$enting, the citizens of the City of Statesville 1

and acting pu,rsuant to the requirements of Section 160A-86 of the North Caroiina General 
Statutes, we, the Statesville ·City Council, do hereby adopt the following General Principles .a.nd 
Code of Eth:ics to guide the City Councll in its lawful decision-maki.ng. 

GENERAL PRINCIPLES UNDERLYING THE CODE OF ETHICS 

• Th.e stability and proper operation of democratic, representative government depend upon
public confidence in the integrity of the, governm;ent and upon responsible exercise of the
trust conferred. by the people upon their el:ected officials.

• Governmental decisions and policy must be made and i:mplemented through proper
ch.a.n,nels an:d pro.cesses 01f the governmental structu,re. 

• Board me,mbers must be abJe to act in a manner that ,maintains their integrity an,d
independence yet is responsive to the interests and needs of those they represe!nt. 

Board members must always remain aware that at various times they play different rotes.: 

o As advocates, who strive to advance the iegitimate need;s of their citizens
o As legislators, w.ho balance the public interest and private rights in consideri,ng and

enacting or:dinances, orders, and resolutions 
o As decision-makers, who a:rrive at fair and impartial quasi--Jud·icial and ad.ministrative

determinations 

.Board members must know how to distinguish among these role·s, to determin·e when each 
role is appropriate, and to act accordingly. 

• Board members must be aware of their obligation to confo,rm their behavior to ,standards

of ethical conduct that warrant the trust of their constituents. Each official must find within

his o.r h,er own conscience th·e touchstone by wh:ich to determine w·hat conduct is

,appropriate. 

'Page 1 of 3 

Page 4 of 109



CODE OF ETHICS 

The purpose of thi's Code of Ethics is to establish guidelines for ethical standards of conduct for 
the City of Statesville a.nd to .help determine what conduct is appropriate in particular case.s. It 
s.hould not be considered a sub,stitute for the law or for a board member's best judgment. 

~ection 1 .. Bo-ard me.mbers should obey an laws applicable to their official actions as members 
of th-e board. Board members should be guided by the spirit as well as the letter of the law in 
whatever they do. 

At the same timef board members sho-uld feel free to assert policy positions and opinions. without 
fear of reprisal from fellow board members or citizens. To declar,e that a bo1ard me.mber Is 
behaving unethically because one disagrees with that board member on a question of policy (and 
not because of the board member1s behavior) is unfair1 dishonest, irres.ponsi-.ble, and itself 
unethicail. 

Board members should endeavor to keep up to date 1 through the boar-d's attorney and other 
sources, about new or ongoing 1and pertinent constitutiona1, statutory) or other legal requirements 
or ethical issues they may face in their ,official position·s. This educational function is .in addition to 
the day-to-day legal advice the bo.ard may receive concerning specific situations that arise. 

Se.ction 2. Board members should act with integrity and ind.ependence from improp,er influence 
as they e.xercise the duties of their offices. Characteristics and behaviors consistent with this 
standa.rd include the following: 

• Adherin·g firmly· to a code of sound valu·es 
• Behaving consistently and with respect toward everyone with whom they interact 
• Exhibiting trustworthiness 

• Living as if they are on duty as elected officials regardless of where they are or what they 
are doing 

• Using the1ir best indepe:nden.t judgment to pursue the com,mon good as the·y see it1, 
presenting their opi:nions to all in a reasonabJe, forthright, consistent manner 

• Remaining incorruptible1 self-governing, and unaffected by improper i:nf:luence while at the 
same time being a:ble to consider the opini:ons and ideas of others 

• Disclosing contacts and infor.mation about issues that they receive outside of public 
meetings and refraining from seeking or receiving information a;bout quasi-judicia.t matters 

outside of the quasi-judicial proceedings themselves 

• Treating other board members, staff a.nd the publi,c with respect and honoring the opinions 
of others even w·hen the 1board members disagree with those opinions 

• Not reaching conclusions on issues until all sides have been heard 
• Showing respect for their offices and not behaving in ways that reflect badly on those 

offices 

• Recog.nizing that they are part o·f a larger group and acting accordingly 
• Recognizing that individu•al board members are not generally allow·ed to act on behalf of 

the board but may only do so .if the board specifically authoriz.es itJ and that the board must 
take official action as a body. 

Section 3. B·oard members should avoid impropriety in the exercise of their officia] duties. Their 
official. actions should be above reproach. Although opinions may vary about what behavior is 
inappropriate, th is board wi11 consider impropriety in terms of whether a reasonable person who 

Page 2 of 3 

Page 5 of 109



is aware of aU of the relevant facts and circumstances surrounding the board member1s action 
would conclude that the action was inappropriate. 
1f a board m.ember believes that his, or her .actions, while legal and ethical, m,ay be misunderstood, 
the member should seek the advice of the board's attorney and should consider publicly 
disclosing the facts of the situation and the steps taken to resolve it (such· as consulti,ng with the 
attorne•y) . 

Section 4. s,,oard m,embers should faithfully perform the duties of their offices. They should act 
as the especiatly responsible citizens whom others can trust a.nd respect. They should set a good 
exam1ple for others in the community, keeping in mind that trust and respect must continually be 
earned1

• 

Board members shou'ld faithfully attend and prepare for meetings. They sho:uJ,d carefully analyze 
all credible information properly submitted to them, mindful of the ·need not to engage in 
communicatjons outside the meeting in, q,uasi-judicial matt.ers. They should demand full 
accountability from those over whom the board has ·authority. 

Board members should be willing to bear th,eir fair share of the board's workload. To the extent 
appropriate, they should be wilJin.g to p•u,t the board>s interests ahead of their own, 

Section 5. Board me.mbers should cond.uct the affairs of the board in an open and public manner. 
They sho'u:ld' comply with all applicable laws ·governing open meetings and pubBc records, 
recog.ni.zing that ,doing so is an important ·way to .be worthy of the p·ublic1s trust. They should 
remember when they meet that they are conducting th,e publ:ic's busines,s. They should also 
remember that local govern.ment records b•elong to the public and not to board .members or their 
employees. 

In order to ensure strict com,pHance with the laws concerning openness, board members should 
make c·lear th.at an enviro.n,ment of transparency and candor is to be maintained at all times in the 
g,overnm.enta( unit. They should proh,ibit unjustified delay in fulfilling public records req:uests. 
They should ta.ke ·delib,erate steps to make cert.ain that an,y close,d sessions held by the 'board are 
lawfully conducted and that such sessi1ons do not stray from the purposes for which they are 
called. 
Secti·on 6. This Code of Ethics should be re-executed by each sitting Council miember during the 
first meeting in January each calen,dar year. 

Accepted this the 1~t day •Of Febr~ar~, 2021. 

·1 affirm that I have read and understand the City of Statesville Code of Ethics thi:s 
the 19°1 d,ay of September, 2022~ 

• 

i 

I 
- - . - -

Constantine H. K.utteh, Mayor Da 'd Jo:nes - Ward One 

t (Ji 
-

C. eris Allison - Ward Three 

: - ~=::--:--- -,e--1----;_~ 
-

Amy LJ:HVrr"""·n - Ward Four J:oe Hu'dson - Ward Five 

> - /'7..-,:....-:7~ ~ ,,- .~ / 
- -

: -re~erick Foster - W rd Six 
. ) ' ' 

Steve Johns • .. - At Large 

~ , r ' -

V ~im erly Wa son· - At Large 

Page 3 of 3 

Page 6 of 109



SPECIAL PRESENTATION 

TO: City Council 

FROM: Mayor Constantine H. Kutteh 

DATE: May 3, 2023 

TO BE REPORTED:   May 15, 2023 
(Date of Council Meeting) 

Representatives from the Mayor’s Youth Advisory Council will review their activities from the past 
six months. The YAC is made up of students from the following middle schools: American 
Renaissance Middle, East Middle, Oakwood Middle, Third Creek, Troutman, and West Middle. 
The Mayor’s Youth Advisory Council was formed in 2021 in response to feedback that there are 
very few activities for young people in our community.   

Page 7 of 109



Page 1 of 4 

MINUTE BOOK , PAGE 

CITY OF STATESVILLE PRE-AGENDA MEETING MINUTES – MAY 01, 2023 

CITY HALL – 227 S. CENTER STREET, STATESVILLE, NC – 6:00 P.M. 

Council Present: Mayor Kutteh presiding, J. Johnson, Jones, Allison, Lawton, Hudson, S. 
Johnson, Foster 

Council Absent: Wasson 

Staff Present: Ron Smith, Fugett, Messick, Pierce, Harrell, E. Kurfees, Nesbit, Ferguson, 
Shelton, Holman, Gregory, Griggs, G. Kurfees, Onley, Ashley, Tart, 
Weatherman, NaKayla Griffin 

I Call to Order 
Mayor Kutteh called the meeting to order. He announced that Council will go into Closed 
Session following the meeting to discuss a Personnel matter. 

Mayor Kutteh reviewed the following agenda. 

II Invocation 

III Pledge of Allegiance  

IV Adoption of the Agenda  

V Code of Ethics   

VI Presentations & Recognitions  
1. Proclamation – National Police Week – May 14-20, 2023 & Peace Officers Memorial

Day-May 15, 2023
2. Proclamation – National Public Works Week - May 21–27, 2023 - “Connecting the

World Through Public Works”
3. Proclamation – National Travel & Tourism Week - May 7-14, 2023
4. Mayor’s Cup Award - Present the 2022 Mayor’s Cup Award to Blueharbor Bank.

Presentation on the Green Street Cemetery by Juli Moore, Director of the Iredell 
County Library.  
Mayor Kutteh stated that Ms. Moore will report on the historic significance of the 
cemetery and the Green Street/Garfield Street district as well as the recent ground-
penetrating radar survey conducted at the site. He added that the woods that were 
cleaned up are actually on private property and not really a part of the cemetery, even 
though there are graves there. Mr. Todd Scott obtained permission from the owner for 
the City to clean that area up. The local chapter of the NAACP has made a financial 
grant to continue the work at the site. 

VII CONSENT AGENDA 
All items below are considered to be routine by City Council and will be enacted by one 
motion. There will be no separate discussion on these items unless a Council member 
requests, in which event, the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered 
with the other items listed in the Regular Agenda. 

Page 8 of 109



Page 2 of 4 

A. Consider approving the April 17, 2023 Pre-Agenda and City Council meeting
minutes.

B. Consider approving 2nd reading of TA23-04: Text Amendment to the Unified
Development Code filed by Mark Sanger (WSIC) to amend Article 3. Zoning,
Section 3.04 Zoning District Regulations, Table 3-1: Use Matrix. (Ashley)

C. Consider approving 2nd reading of TA23-05: Text Amendments filed by the City
of Statesville to amend the City Code, Chapter 21 Streets and Sidewalks, Article
III, Improvements, Construction, Etc., Sections 21-83. Through 21-86. and the
Unified Development Code, Article 1. Administration, Section 1.02 Purpose,
Section 1.03 Interpretation, Section 1.04 Responsibilities for Application of
Code, Section 1.05 Exemptions, Article 8. Public Facilities Requirements,
Section 8.06 Streets, B. Street Design, G. Other Improvements. And Article 9
Definitions. (Ashley)

D. Consider approving a resolution directing the City Clerk to Investigate a Petition
of Annexation of AX23-07 from Clayton Homes of Statesville for PIN #4753-99-
3612 for the property located at 413 Twin Oaks Road; Receive the City Clerk’s
Certificate of Sufficiency; Consider approving a resolution setting the date of
May 15, 2023, for a public hearing for the petition for annexation. (Ashley)

E. Consider approving 2nd reading of annexation request AX23-04, an ordinance to
annex the 3 properties located on Whites Mill Road Drive, PIN #’s 4743-36-9145,
4743-45-5248, & 4743-54-3605; Larkin Front 9 (True Homes LLC) properties.
(Ashley)

F. Consider approving Samet Corporation to be the Prime Contractor for the
construction of the new Airport Terminal Building. (Ferguson)
Airport Manager John Ferguson stated that the Terminal Building will be constructed
using a new method called Construction Management at Risk (CMR). This is where a
contractor is selected by qualifications instead of low bid. The contractor will work side
by side with the architect to produce the drawings for the building. The contractor then
solicits bids for the subcontract work, thus giving the city the lowest construction cost
possible. Three firms were interviewed, G.L. Wilson, Samet, and Barnhill Construction.
Samet was chosen due to their extensive experience in the CMR process and their
high usage of local subcontractors and high usage of HUB subcontractors. Samet will
also be working with Mitchell Community College with their Electrical and HVAC
students to give them on-the-job experience. Estimated completion of the building is
January 2025. Previously Council approved receipt of the funds for the construction of
the Terminal building in the amount of $9.7 million. This is a 100% grant from the SCIF
funds.

G. Consider approving the Community Appearance Commission’s request to
purchase five sculptures to install at the proposed locations. (Griggs)
Mayor Kutteh said that the Statesville Community Appearance Commission is
requesting to install four sculptures in the streetscape area of downtown Statesville
and one sculpture in Mac Anderson Park. The Community Appearance Commission
has chosen a proposed location and an alternate location for each sculpture in the
downtown area. The Commission already has the budgeted funds available to

Page 9 of 109



Page 3 of 4 

purchase the first four listed sculptures. The sculpture proposed for 746 Shelton 
Avenue will be funded jointly by the Statesville Housing Authority and the Community 
Appearance Commission.   

REGULAR AGENDA 

IX Conduct a public hearing and consider approving first reading of AX23-05, an 
ordinance to  annex the property located at the corner of James Farm Road and 
Glenway Drive. PIN #4745- 78-7821 Falls Park (James Glen Multi-Family) property. 
(Ashley) 
Mayor Kutteh stated that the request has been submitted by Elevation Acquisition & 
Development on behalf of Falls Park LLC. The parcel is approximately 16.73 acres and is 
located at the corner of James Farm Road and Glenway Drive. The property is the site of 
the proposed James Glen Multi-Family Development. The James Glen Multi-Family 
Development consists of 11 buildings and 264-units. The parcel being requested for 
annexation is located outside the primary corporate limits of the City of Statesville but is 
within the Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction; and is zoned R-5MF CZ (High Density Multi-Family 
Residential Conditional Zoning) District. The applicant requests voluntary annexation to 
utilize city water and sewer services. 

X Consider approving a resolution to take over the maintenance of the abandoned 
Green  Street Cemetery. (Smith) 
Mayor Kutteh stated that the Green Street Cemetery has been abandoned since the mid-
1900s. The City of Statesville has been maintaining the cemetery since 1961. The 
Resolution from 1961 is not signed and there is not a signed copy on file with the Register 
of Deeds. Given the time lapse, we must adopt a new resolution in order to have it on file 
at the Register of Deeds for the City to take over the maintenance of the cemetery.  

City Council moved this item to the Consent Agenda. 

XI Consider approving a request from Waves Entertainment and All-American Stage, 
Sound and Lights, LLC to move the previously approved Second Saturday Festivals 
to Downtown Statesville. (Griggs) 
Parks & Recreation Director Richard Griggs stated that Waves Entertainment and All-
American Stage, Sound, and Lights, LLC were previously approved to host a series of 
Second Saturday Festivals at Martin Luther King, Jr. Park.  The event is growing, and the 
applicants would like to move the event to Downtown Statesville on Broad Street from 
Mulberry to Meeting Street (Plan B).  The City would remain a co-sponsor of the event 
and provide in-kind services, including police personnel. Event dates include July 8, 
August 12, September 9, and October 14, 2023. DSDC has reviewed the event 
application and are in favor of the festival in the Downtown area. City in-kind services 
would primarily be personnel related (i.e., delivery and pickup of barricades, trash 
receptables, police presence, etc.), if co-sponsored. The estimated cost of services is 
roughly $2,000 for a one-day event, the bulk of which is to pay for four police officers. 
When the event was held last year at the park, the City covered the cost of two officers. If 
the Police Department has recommended four officers for these events, then he 
recommends requesting that Waves Entertainment split the cost of the officers as is 
required for other events. The hours for the street closures will be from 2:00 p.m. to 7:00 
p.m. with dismantle hours from 7:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m. City Council is okay with both
Options A and B but not using the church parking lot.

Page 10 of 109



Page 4 of 4 

 

 City Council moved this item to the Consent Agenda. 
 

XII Receive a report on the current state of parking in Downtown Statesville, key issues, 
 and possible solutions. (Marlow-DSDC)  
 
XIII Consider approving a financing proposal for the Municipal Operations Center 
 (Warehouse)  and Fire Station 1. (Smith)  
 
XIV City Manager’s Report 
 
XV  Advisory Boards Meeting Minutes 
  02/15/2023 Technical Review Committee Meeting Minutes 
  03/01/2023 Technical Review Committee Meeting Minutes 
  03/15/2023 Technical Review Committee Meeting Minutes  
  03/28/2023 Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
  04/05/2023 Historic Preservation Commission Meeting Minutes 
  04/13/2023 Downtown Design Review Committee Meeting Minutes 
 
XVI  Other Business 
 
XVII  Closed Session 

 
 Council member Foster made a motion to move to Closed Session to discuss a 

Personnel matter, seconded by Council member Hudson. The motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
 Mayor Kutteh stated that while in Closed Session, City Council discussed a Personnel 

matter, and no action was taken. 
 
Council member J. Johnson made a motion to adjourn, seconded by Council 
member S. Johnson. The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
 
             
       Constantine H. Kutteh, Mayor 
 
     
Brenda Fugett, City Clerk 

 

 

Page 11 of 109



Page 1 of 11 

MINUTE BOOK , PAGE 
CITY OF STATESVILLE COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – MAY 01, 2023 
CITY HALL – 227 S. CENTER STREET, STATESVILLE, NC – 7:00 P.M. 

Council Present: Mayor Kutteh presiding, J. Johnson, Jones, Allison, Lawton, Hudson, S. 
Johnson, Foster 

Council Absent: Wasson 

Staff Present: Ron Smith, Fugett, Messick, Pierce, Harrell, E. Kurfees, Nesbit, Ferguson, 
Shelton, Holman, Gregory, Griggs, G. Kurfees, Onley, Ashley, Tart, 
Weatherman, NaKayla Griffin 

I Call to Order 
Mayor Kutteh called the meeting to order. 

II Invocation 
The City Clerk gave the invocation. 

III Pledge of Allegiance  
Mayor Kutteh led the pledge of allegiance. 

IV Adoption of the Agenda  
Mayor Kutteh stated that Items X and XI on the Regular Agenda were moved to the Consent 
Agenda at the Pre-Agenda Meeting. He asked for a motion on the amended agenda. 

Council member J. Johnson made a motion to approve, seconded by Council member 
Foster. 

V Code of Ethics 

On behalf of Council member Allison, who has laryngitis, Mayor Kutteh thanked all staff who 
worked on removing a fallen tree after hours on Friday in the South Statesville’s Park. 

Mayor Kutteh thanked all that were involved in dealing with the downtown fires. 

VI Presentations & Recognitions 

Mayor’s Cup Award - Present the 2022 Mayor’s Cup Award to Blueharbor Bank. 
Mayor Kutteh presented the Mayor’s Cup Award to Blue Harbor Bank. Blueharbor Bank was 
selected to receive the Mayor’s Cup Award for improving the appearance of Statesville at 
108 North Tradd Street. The Mayor’s Cup is awarded each year by the Community 
Appearance Commission to the person or business that has made a significant contribution 
to improving the appearance of Statesville.  

Proclamation – National Police Week – May 14-20, 2023 & Peace Officers Memorial 
Day-May 15, 2023 
Mayor Kutteh read and presented the proclamation to Statesville Police Sgt. Kevin 
Brookshire, Asst. Police Chief John Ivarsson, and Police Chief David Onley. 

Page 12 of 109



Page 2 of 11 

Proclamation – National Public Works Week - May 21–27, 2023 - “Connecting the 
World Through Public Works” 
Mayor Kutteh read and presented the proclamation to Assistant City Manager Scott Harrell 
and Public Works Director Mark Taylor. 

Proclamation – National Travel & Tourism Week - May 7-14, 2023 
Mayor Kutteh read and presented the proclamation to Statesville Convention & Visitors 
Bureau members: Debbie Williamson, Jimmy Patel, Michelle Hepler, Donald Hicks, and 
Executive Director Cindy Sutton. 

Presentation on the Green Street Cemetery by Juli Moore, Director of the Iredell 
County Library. 

Good evening, I’m Juli Moore the Director of the Iredell County Public Library and I am here 
to provide an update on the Green Street Cemetery Ground Penetrating Radar Survey.  

As a librarian, I strive to provide accurate information, which is difficult in a time where people 
rely heavily on the internet, and often don’t fact check to see if their source is reliable or 
credible. There has been a lot of misinformation spread about this project and I hope to clear 
up some of this misinformation tonight.  

This project has a lot of moving parts, collaborating agencies, and a variety of parameters 
which we need to be mindful of. In my opinion, a lot of the confusion comes from the County 
and the City being two separate entities. I am appreciative and excited that we are able to 
work together on this incredible preservation project. The County, specifically the Library is 
managing the grant and the City is responsible for the care and upkeep of the Green Street 
Cemetery. For the citizens this is irrelevant but from the standpoint of how each organization 
proceeds and the parameters in which the County and City operate it is not.  

I loved what Vivian Williams said during the public comment period on April 17, 2023 at the 
City Council meeting, “This is phase 1, part A of the project,” or how I like to refer to it, the 
first step of many. The Library is involved in the first step but moving forward the Library will 
not be a part of the additional steps the City takes unless our assistance or partnership is 
requested, as we do not want to overstep our bounds.  

Grants are wonderful and complicated all at the same time. Grants provide the opportunity 
to have an impact or meet a specific need, but each grant has guidelines the recipient must 
follow to a T in conjunction with their organizations and partnering organizations operating 
procedures.  

In case there are people in attendance this evening that are not familiar with the Green 
Street GPR Survey I will take a few minutes to provide some background information. The 
Iredell County Public Library applied for a $20,000 Large Project Grant through NC 
Humanities last year and was awarded the grant in September 2022. The grant requires a 
2 to 1 match, and the $40,000 match is being provided in-kind.  

The $20,000 the Library received from NC Humanities will pay for the cost of the GPR survey 
in the amount of $5,970 and materials and supplies in the amount of $14,030. The matching 
funds provided in-kind by the Library and our community partners which include the City of 
Statesville, the Statesville Branch of the NAACP, and Downtown Statesville total $53,430, 
well above the $40,000 required. The Library and the community partners are providing 

Page 13 of 109



Page 3 of 11 

goods and services as opposed to money, while working collaboratively together and 
building relationships. This is a great time to point out that everyone working on this project 
is contributing their time, services, and expertise in addition to their regular duties and not 
in lieu of.  

The NC Humanities Large Project grant funding period runs from November 1, 2022 through 
June 30, 2023. No funds were allowed to be expended nor could work be completed that 
was counted toward the in-kind match prior to November 1, 2022.  

Len Strozier from Omega Mapping Services was awarded the contract to survey the 
cemetery. In order to select Omega Mapping, the Library was required to provide three 
quotes to the County’s Purchasing & Contracts manager. Once the quotes were reviewed 
and Omega Mapping was selected, the contract had to be reviewed, approved, and signed. 
Once we had a signed contract, we contacted Omega Mapping to schedule the GPR survey 
based on their availability.  

Approximately 70% of the survey has been completed to date. Mr. Strozier started the 
survey on Friday, March 24, 2023 and worked through Thursday, March 30, 2023. As of 
March 30th, Mr. Strozier had marked 1,673 graves with orange flags and documented 143 
graves with tombstone markers for a total of 1,816 graves. The library has since identified 
nine more graves that had markers that had been grown over for a total of 152 graves with 
markers at this point.  

The area behind the funeral home required further clearing and cleaning in order for Mr. 
Strozier to accurately complete the survey. The City of Statesville began clearing out this 
area on Wednesday, April 19, 2023 and the cleaning and clearing is estimated to be 
completed this week. This was a huge undertaking, requiring the removal of trees and 
overgrowth. Not to mention that prior to starting the survey we had to obtain approval from 
the owner of the land behind the funeral home to be able to clear it and conduct the survey. 

I contacted Teddy Boller at Iredell County Solid Waste and inquired as to how many loads 
of debris were brought to the landfill from Green Street and what the associated costs were. 
Mr. Boller reported that 18 truckloads of debris were hauled from Green Street Cemetery 
with a chargeable weight of 29,280 lbs. or 14.64 tons, with a chargeable cost of $585.60. 
The County approved waiving the tipping fees that the City would normally be charged.  
Once the cleanup is complete, we will schedule a time for Mr. Strozier to return and survey 
the remaining area along Elm Street and the area behind the funeral home. Mr. Strozier 
recorded the GPS coordinates of the 1,673 graves that he flagged up to this point. Once the 
survey is complete, he will provide a map of the cemetery with the location of each burial.  

On Wednesday, April 12th from 12-5, the Library hosted a community service program, 
along with their partners, inviting members of the community to replace each flag with a 
permanent marker. A total of 35 community members assisted with this project throughout 
the day, including library staff, city staff, and members of the NAACP. In 5 hours, 1,400 flags 
were removed and replaced with permanent markers. The next day, Thursday, April 13th, 
Library employees Joel Reese and Shellie Taylor returned to install the remaining markers 
and a couple of community members showed up to assist.  

The permanent markers were selected on the recommendation of Mr. Strozier. In the future, 
if the markers are grown over with grass their location will be easily identified with a metal 
detector. Also, if at some point small flat brick or stone markers are installed for each 

Page 14 of 109



Page 4 of 11 

unmarked burial the permanent metal markers should remain in place. The flat stone 
markers would not be able to be easily found if covered with grass, but the bolts would be 
able to be easily located as mentioned above.  

Once the survey is complete, the Library will order the additional markers needed and host 
another program, inviting the community to participate again. Let me just say that installing 
the markers is very physical work. There were several community members that stopped by 
and offered moral support and kind words but were not physically able to assist with this 
aspect of the project. I will admit that I was sore for several days after installing quite a few 
markers. 

After the additional markers are ordered and we know how much grant funding is available 
to work with the Library will meet with their community partners to determine the best sign 
options to present to the public for feedback and approval through 2 community forums. The 
forums will be held at City Hall and have been scheduled for May 16th and May 30th.  

This project has been an honor and a privilege to work on. One of the things I love most 
about my job is the opportunity to have a positive impact on the community that I serve and 
have called home for 20 years, but this does not go without challenges. As with any project, 
program, and/or service that the library offers it is always hard to communicate and get the 
word out to the public. As I hope most of you know, the library is so much more than books 
and that message is not always heard or seen. This project has been no different, we have 
communicated updates through email, newsletters, on social media, in the newspaper, 
through our community partners, and by offering programs just to name a few. But if the 
community does not have email or check email on a regular basis, does not partake in social 
media, have access to the internet, get the newspaper, or come to the library, all the 
community is not reached.  

I also want to express my great appreciation to the City of Statesville, the Statesville Branch 
of the NAACP, Downtown Statesville, library staff, the community, County Administration, 
and Iredell County Solid Waste. Without the support and collaboration of all these 
organizations and people this project would not be possible.  

After the GPR survey grant project through NC Humanities is wrapped up the Statesville 
NAACP has committed to assist with the cost of cleaning and repairing the headstones in 
the cemetery.  

Thank you for your time and attention and I am happy to answer any questions at this time. 

Council member Allison thanked Ms. Moore and all those working on this project for 
everything they have done. 

VII CONSENT AGENDA 
Mayor Kutteh stated that all items below are considered to be routine by City Council and 
will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion on these items unless 
a Council member requests, in which event, the item will be removed from the Consent 
Agenda and considered with the other items listed in the Regular Agenda. 

A. Consider approving the April 17, 2023 Pre-Agenda and City Council meeting
minutes.

Page 15 of 109



Page 5 of 11 

B. Consider approving 2nd reading of TA23-04: Text Amendment to the Unified
Development Code filed by Mark Sanger (WSIC) to amend Article 3. Zoning,
Section 3.04 Zoning District Regulations, Table 3-1: Use Matrix. (Ashley)

C. Consider approving 2nd reading of TA23-05: Text Amendments filed by the City
of Statesville to amend the City Code, Chapter 21 Streets and Sidewalks, Article
III, Improvements, Construction, Etc., Sections 21-83. Through 21-86. and the
Unified Development Code, Article 1. Administration, Section 1.02 Purpose,
Section 1.03 Interpretation, Section 1.04 Responsibilities for Application of
Code, Section 1.05 Exemptions, Article 8. Public Facilities Requirements,
Section 8.06 Streets, B. Street Design, G. Other Improvements. And Article 9
Definitions. (Ashley)

D. Consider approving a resolution directing the City Clerk to Investigate a Petition
of Annexation of AX23-07 from Clayton Homes of Statesville for PIN #4753-99-
3612 for the property located at 413 Twin Oaks Road; Receive the City Clerk’s
Certificate of Sufficiency; Consider approving a resolution setting the date of
May 15, 2023, for a public hearing for the petition for annexation. (Ashley)

E. Consider approving 2nd reading of annexation request AX23-04, an ordinance to
annex the 3 properties located on Whites Mill Road Drive, PIN #’s 4743-36-9145,
4743-45-5248, & 4743-54-3605; Larkin Front 9 (True Homes LLC) properties.
(Ashley)

F. Consider approving Samet Corporation to be the Prime Contractor for the
construction of the new Airport Terminal Building. (Ferguson)

G. Consider approving the Community Appearance Commission’s request to
purchase five sculptures to install at the proposed locations. (Griggs)

X Consider approving a resolution to take over the maintenance of the abandoned
Green Street Cemetery. (Smith)

XI Consider approving a request from Waves Entertainment and All-American
Stage, Sound and Lights, LLC to move the previously approved Second
Saturday Festivals to Downtown Statesville. (Griggs)

Mayor Kutteh asked if any Council member wanted any of these items moved to the
Regular Agenda. Hearing none, he asked for a motion to approve the Consent
Agenda.

Council member Foster made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda,
seconded by Council member J. Johnson. The motion carried unanimously.

REGULAR AGENDA 

IX Conduct a public hearing and consider approving first reading of AX23-05, an 
ordinance to  annex the property located at the corner of James Farm Road and 
Glenway Drive. PIN #4745-78-7821 Falls Park (James Glen Multi-Family) property.  
Planning Director Sherry Ashley stated that the request was submitted by Elevation 
Acquisition & Development on behalf of Falls Park LLC. The parcel is approximately 

Page 16 of 109



Page 6 of 11 

16.73 acres and is located at the corner of James Farm Road and Glenway Drive. The 
property is the site of the proposed James Glen Multi-Family Development. The James 
Glen Multi-Family Development consists of 11 buildings and 264-units. The parcel being 
requested for annexation is located outside the primary corporate limits of the City of 
Statesville but  is within the Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction; and is zoned R-5MF CZ (High 
Density Multi-Family Residential Conditional Zoning) District. The applicant requests 
voluntary annexation to utilize city water and sewer services. 

Mayor Kutteh declared the public hearing open and asked if anyone wished to speak on 
this matter. Hearing none, he declared the public hearing closed and asked for a motion. 

Chris Lemack with Elevation Acquisition & Development Group in Huntersville stated he 
would answer any questions Council has. There were no questions. 

Council member Allison made a motion to approve first reading of AX23-05, 
seconded by Council member Hudson. The motion carried unanimously. 

XII Receive a report on the current state of parking in Downtown Statesville, key issues, 
and possible solutions. (Marlow-DSDC)  
Brittany Marlow reported information regarding the supply, demand, parking survey 
results, current issues, and potential short-term and long-term solutions for parking issues 
in Downtown Statesville.  

Mayor Kutteh asked how many spaces were occupied out of the available 880 spaces. 
Marlow replied that 64% was the highest number occupied. She said there is still a lot of 
parking available at that point, but it is just on the outskirts.  

XIII Consider approving a financing proposal for the Municipal Operations Center 
(Warehouse)  and Fire Station 1. (Smith)  
Mitch with Davenport Public Finance stated they have been assisting City staff to pursue 
financing for its two most current construction projects. A Request for Proposals (RFP) 
for a Direct Banking Loan financing was distributed on March 13, 2023 to over 50 
lending institutions to fund the Fire Station 1 and the Municipal Operations Center. The 
institutions were asked to provide proposals for an Installment Financing to be secured 
by a Deed of Trust on the projects of up to $12,000,000 with options for both 15- and 20-
year terms. The City received six proposals for the 15-year option and three proposals 
for the 20-year option. The Truist Bank proposals provided the only interest rates that 
are held firm for a closing in mid-July, while the rest of the interest rate proposals 
received are subject to change until late May/early June. Final maturity on the loan 
would be 6/1/2038 (15-year term) or 6/1/2043 (20-year term). The total financing for the 
15-year term is $13,429,997 and the 20-year term is $14,553,467. There are positives
and negatives for each term. Based on Davenport’s review of the proposals, analysis,
and discussions with City Staff and Bond Counsel, Davenport recommends that the City
move forward with the Truist 10-year par call interest rate option for either the 15-year or
20-year term. The Truist proposal provides the only interest rates that are locked through
a potential closing date of mid-July. The 10-year par call prepayment option provides the
lowest interest rate with a known prepayment cost and ability to refinance for debt
service savings (subject to market rates). May 22nd, 2023, the Municipal Operations
Center Project bids are received. At the June 5th meeting, the Council will hold a public
hearing to consider adopting Preliminary Findings and Final Resolution establishing the
final not to exceed total borrowing amount and other terms or conditions. The application
for financing must be submitted by June 6, 2023, to the Local Government Commission.

Page 17 of 109



Page 7 of 11 

Mayor Kutteh asked if these are annual payments. Mitch replied they are the total monthly 
payments, and they are semi-annual payments. Mayor Kutteh asked if there is a monthly 
payment option because it would make some difference in the amount of interest paid. 
Mitch replied he could ask for monthly and it would make a small difference, but 
whether the City does better or not depends on where interest earning rates are at 
compared to its loan rates. 

Council member Jones asked Ron Smith if when he was looking at the overall budget and 
the general fund balance, capital improvement stuff forecasted out, what gives the city the 
most flexibility? The 15 year or the 20 year with a 10-year call option? Smith replied that 
since staff used the 5% planning rate, that gives us… to me these are such favorable 
comparisons to that. He said his personal preference has been the 15 year because as 
Mitch said, the difference in that first 10 years, each year is nominal and we are already 
seeing better than expected returns, through the reappraisal. What I think we are going to 
see is future growth that surpasses what I think is in the planning model for our next 10 
years. Either one of them, in my opinion, we can support and gives us enough flexibility to 
do it. I would prefer getting it over with early and getting us to that point that after 10 years 
we have the flexibility to refinance.  

Council member S. Johnson asked if this project is going to be done in phases regarding 
the warehouse. Smith replied that this is the garage. The $2 million from the fire station 
and what we hope will be around $8 million for the garage. The rest of that project will be 
handled through the Electric Utility Department, so that is going to be together, but the 
construction costs are split.  

S. Johnson asked if the remainder of the project related to the warehouse is going to be
funded out of enterprise funds or will we have to borrow more money that will have to be
serviced out of the General Fund. Smith replied that it will probably be a mix of funds as
we get to them. The next phase of the warehouse or the bigger warehouse project is the
actual conversion of the garage to a warehouse. I think that is going to be made up with
various funds because everybody uses it. Then we will get into the retrofit, or potential
replacement, of the current electric building, which is the most money in the future phases,
but this is about 3 years out. This will be partially funded by enterprise funds, if not
entirely by enterprise funds and will depend on what staff are going to be in the
building.

Mayor Kutteh asked if it was considered to take some component for the General Fund, 
because it seems as if we are going to have another significant cost of issuance that could 
have been consumed in large part in this one if we had done 15 instead of 12 now for 
example. Mitch replied that the current project for what we are calling the warehouse is 
Phase One. It is a combination of General Fund and Electric Fund. The $10 million for this 
phase is just the General Fund. Then I believe they're scheduled up to maybe five total 
phases, and there could be in the capital planning model we've looked at, there's additional 
borrowings for the General Fund in future years for those future phases. The reason why 
we can't necessarily get ahead of that and borrow for more of those phases right now is 
because we must get approval from the Local Government Commission for all our 
debt financing. The reason why we cannot necessarily get ahead of that and borrow for 
more of those phases right now is because we must get approval from the local 
government commission for all our debt financing. One of the findings they must make 
is that a borrowing is adequate, but not excessive and to make that finding, they look to 

Page 18 of 109



Page 8 of 11 

see what the project bids are. Do we have a fixed firm cost for the project? Phase 
One is the only phase right now that we have a Fixed Cost for, of the General Fund 
components, so that would preclude us from borrowing for these future projects. 

Smith said it would be all but impossible to get to that point, because if you remember how 
we are doing the warehouse project, we are starting with this, and then we must shift to 
build out the entire project, so it is probably a six or eight or longer year total build out on 
that campus.  

Mayor Kutteh asked what is in the budget for cost of issuance and is that generally a 
percentage of the issuance? Because if not, then we are paying more in the lender’s 
counsel fees. I don't know if you pay them that much more for 15 million than you do for 
10 million. Mitch replied that they are generally mostly fixed costs related to the financing, 
so whether that fee is a lender’s counsel fee, that is Truist’s counsel fee I do not see that 
vary much with the size of the loan. It tends to be fixed. The other costs of issuance 
are all generally fixed  within a range. Title insurance components and when we must 
get title insurance or things related to real estate can vary based upon the low amount 
loan amount.  

Mayor Kutteh stated that it looks to him as if our cost of issuance is going to be excessive 
over time by doing a phase. If we're going to spend 175,000 the next time when we borrow 
two or three or five and another 170,000, then suddenly, 4.04 is not as generous as it 
sounds. Mitch pointed out there is also the possibility of combining with other projects 
as Council does other projects in the General Fund. What Council would normally do is 
try to time them like it did with the fire station and the warehouse so they can be done at 
the same time to minimize the total amounts. 

Mayor Kutteh said he likes the deal, the 15-year option. He likes the fact that the 4.04 is 
not much more than their MWC number, so that's pretty good. He just does not like the 
fact that a year from now, or two years from now, or whenever we get around to it, but he 
does not like paying a big number for the same kind of service. 

Council member S. Johnson said he does not like being told that Council must do this by 
Friday, May 5th or the City cannot be guaranteed this rate or these terms. Why was this 
not presented two weeks ago? The other thing is, if this is going to be paid all out of the 
operational budget, then why are we not paying at least some of it out of that cash 
reserve so that we can reduce the budgetary impact in subsequent years like I've been 
arguing, but every time I bring that up, we need to think more strategically in terms of the 
context of the budget, but it seems like now we're on the verge of borrowing $12 million 
with no discussion at all about the context of the budget. If it needs to work one way, it 
needs to work both ways. If we did pay some of that money down here and you were on 
the 20-year, if you paid half of it down, we could save $300,000 a year and that gives 
us more latitude to do some other things. When we finally get the numbers on the 
revaluation, I think we're looking at about 6.1 million in new money. I'll go down my list 
of budget items again. A million for the police that we have already committed to, and I'm 
not willing to back out of that, I think that was absolutely necessary. We have $300,000 
for the pay study. If Ron goes through, and I'm not going to throw the percentage out 
because I do not want to box him, the pay raise, which is surely needed because our 
folks have been taking it on the chin the last couple years like the rest of us, and believe 
me, in my small business getting help is a competitive market right now. You have to pay 
them a pretty good rate or you're not going to get good help. So that was $1.8 million. 

Page 19 of 109



Page 9 of 11 

Then we're going to eliminate the solid waste fee, and if we do this, we're down to a little 
bit about $2 million. And for heaven's sake, we're hitting the folks with a 31% tax increase. 
We hadn't even spoken of any potential tax relief on that. So that brings me down to what's 
the expected increase in sales tax revenues in terms of real dollars. Do we know that yet? 

Ron Smith replied that he did not remember the exact number, but staff is assuming it will 
be relatively flat this year, but again, this year has been a growth year as they have 
been for the last three or four.  

Mayor Kutteh added, that even under this 15-year scenario, we're going to need $3.5 
million to pay it off at the end of 10-years. One option then will be to go to the fund balance 
and just say, we don't need to finance it further, we have gotten our benefit from the 
financing part of this, if we're still in good shape, we would have that. That is what I see of 
some of the flexibility of that cash reserve or General Fund balance.  

Council member S. Johnson said one last consideration he had was that the manager put 
1.4 in, and my interpretation of that is operational capital needs, but at 6% inflation, if 
it holds up, and it looks like it sure is not transitory. Folks, the price, everything doubles 
about every eight years. That 1.4 in four or five years is not going to be enough money. 
You are going to have to have some latitude in this budget to add to that or you are going 
to begin to fall behind again on operational capital needs. 

Council member S. Johnson asked what the drop-dead deadline is with the LGC. Mitch 
replied that they are going to the LGC July 11th meeting, and our application will be due 
to them on June 6th, and there is a preliminary letter that must be sent by May 26th. 

Ron Smith stated that the quick turnaround is because Truist is the only one that has given 
us a true rate that has not got some level of risk associated with it, because we have a 
closing that is in July, so that is really what is driving that deadline, they are only willing to 
hold it for so long. 

Mitch stated that Truist’s original proposal was not held firm until after this Council meeting. 
Staff went back to them and asked them to give us another proposal that would be held 
firm until after this meeting. They originally were going to do tomorrow, and we were able 
to push it out to Friday. 

Mayor Kutteh stated that he does not know if this plays into it at all, but he would guess 
that Council would have normally received the budget message and the budget at this 
meeting, so some of these questions about how the budget looks would have been known 
contemporaneously with this information, because I think all of us are not nervous about 
the budget, but interested in what has been proposed for salaries and capital needs and 
how does that work in, and what other revenue sources have you found. I guess we are 
relying on the City Manager saying that what he knows as City Manager about the budget 
is consistent with what has been proposed here, and that he has incorporated the first 
year's payment into the budget and can present Council a budget that balances with that. 

Ron Smith replied that is correct. He has looked at the future projects and in the Capital 
Improvement Plan there is a Fire Station 5, a Police Department expansion, all the future 
phases of this project, and others. He said these are the ones just off the top of my head 
that he knows the prices are not going down and all the flexibility that we have by shifting 
that $10 million or so over from Fund Balance to float these projects over time, we need 

Page 20 of 109



Page 10 of 11 

 

 that flexibility. There are going to be opportunities, I think, to buy down like with the Fire 
 Station, probably to buy down on the Fire Station 5, on the PD and do that type of thing. 
 He said he has been cautious because he sees all these projects and there is 
 momentum behind the projects, because Council has said you want to do these things 
 over the next five years and staff is trying to figure out a way to make sure we can make 
 those happen. This is a good budget year, but it is at least partway due to the very good 
 reappraisal that we have seen. 
 
 Mayor Kutteh stated that now would be a good time to see if we can get a motion from the 
 Council and then if we get a motion and a second, we can continue our discussion further 
 and come to some conclusion about that.  
 
 Council member Jones made a motion to accept the 15-year term with a 10-year Par 
 Call, seconded by Council member Foster. 
 
 Council member Allison stated that say, Council is in a delicate situation right now and to 
 have all these banks and only one decided to work with us, and we need them, they don't 
 need us. There are going to be what ifs, we can deal with the what ifs, but if we lose this 
 opportunity now, we are going backwards, and we do not have time to go backwards. The 
 economy is pretty good right now, so we need to move on to what is good right now and 
 move it forward. 
 
 Council member S. Johnson said he understands these things, but what he is trying to 
 move forward with is a discussion about why there is a rush to borrow the entire amount 
 that is being paid for out of the General Fund. The City should shift as much as it can to 
 the enterprise funds, and if we do use some of that fund balance to pay it down, then we 
 can start building that money for the next project that is going to come out of the General 
 Fund.  
 
 Council member Jones stated that if we lock in at this rate now, most likely the rates are 
 going to rise as well as the cost. It will give us the flexibility to use our cash to pay for those 
 projects. To Council member Lawton's point, as long as we are staying within our fund 
 balance guidelines of somewhere between 25 and 30%, we should be good. Council 
 member Foster agreed.  

 
 Mayor Kutteh called for a vote on the motion. The vote on the motion was as follows: 
 
  Ayes: Jones, Foster, Allison, Lawton, Hudson 
  Nays: S. Johnson, J. Johnson  
  Motion Carried: 5-2 (Wasson Absent) 
 
 Council member S. Johnson stated that he supports the project, he just thinks there is a 
 better way to finance it. Mayor Kutteh said he believes that all of Council agrees with 
 Council member S. Johnson that the enterprise funds bear their fair share of the project. 
 Mitch said that part of this first phase is being born by the Electric Fund. He would like for 
 Council and staff to look more carefully at the electric and other enterprise funds that may 
 be able to participate in the rest of the warehouse complex project. 
 
XIV City Manager’s Report 
 Ron Smith apologized that Council did not receive the budget tonight, but Council will 
 receive it at the May 15th meeting. 

Page 21 of 109



Page 11 of 11 

On June 20th, there is going to be a Housing Symposium that the Statesville Housing 
Authority has initiated with Central Regional Council and the City as co-sponsors. We are 
going to work with them to talk about the state of housing similar to what Matthew had 
talked about a month and a half or so ago, but on a larger scale, interactive. The entire 
Council is invited. He will get more information out on that a little bit closer to the date. 

Saturday, May 6th from 10:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. there is going to be a cleanup of the 
Free Nancy Branch at Mac Anderson Park, so in the same vein as the community 
cleanups Adopt a Street, they are going to do a project out at Mac Anderson Park. 

XV Advisory Boards Meeting Minutes 
02/15/2023 Technical Review Committee Meeting Minutes 
03/01/2023 Technical Review Committee Meeting Minutes 
03/15/2023 Technical Review Committee Meeting Minutes  
03/28/2023 Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
04/05/2023 Historic Preservation Commission Meeting Minutes 
04/13/2023 Downtown Design Review Committee Meeting Minutes 

XVI Other Business - None 

XVII Closed Session - None 

Council member J. Johnson made a motion to adjourn, seconded by Council 
member Allison. The motion carried unanimously. 

Constantine H. Kutteh, Mayor 

Brenda Fugett, City Clerk 

Page 22 of 109



CITY COUNCIL ACTION REQUEST 

TO: Ron Smith, City Manager 

FROM:  Marci Sigmon, Planner II 

DATE: May 01, 2023 

ACTION NEEDED ON:  May 15, 2023 
 (Date of Council Meeting) 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Consider approving a request to demolish the existing structure located at 113 Garfield 
Street.  

1. Summary of Information:  The structure located at 113 Garfield Street was constructed ca.
1925 and is owned by the Statesville District of the Western North Carolina Conference of the
A.M.E. Zion Church. The building historically served as the district office of the presiding elder
over the Western North Carolina Conference of the A.M.E. Zion Church.

The owner is requesting to demolish the building due to severe disrepair. The building is 
experiencing structural issues with the supporting wood joists decaying and the interior floors 
falling in. The exterior of the structure has been renovated by adding vinyl siding. The church 
will clear the debris where the building once stood and sow the area in grass seed when 
demolition is complete. 

2. Previous Council or Relevant Actions: The Statesville Design Review Committee
recommended the demolition of the structure at a called meeting on April 26, 2023. All
demolitions in the Downtown Statesville Overlay Area require approval by the city council.

3. Budget/Funding Implications: N/A

4. Consequences of Inaction: The applicant will not be able to demolish the structure, therefore
creating a nuisance and hazard on the property.

5. Staff Recommendation:  Staff recommends the demolition of the structure located at 113
Garfield Street.

6. Manager Comments: Concur with the department’s recommendation.

7. Next Steps:  If approved, the applicant will obtain a demolition permit to remove the existing
structure and sow the area with grass when demolition is completed.

8. Attachments:
1. Aerial photograph.
2. Site photographs.

Page 23 of 109



1
1

3
 G

arfie
ld

 Stre
et -

A
e

rial

Page 24 of 109



1
1

3
 G

ar
fi

e
ld

 S
tr

e
et

Fr
o

n
t 

El
ev

at
io

n
R

e
ar

El
ev

at
io

n

W
es

t 
El

ev
at

io
n

Ea
st

El
ev

at
io

n

Page 25 of 109



1
1

3
 G

ar
fi

e
ld

 S
tr

e
e

t 
–

In
te

ri
o

r 
C

o
n

d
it

io
n

s 
P

ro
vi

d
e

d
 b

y 
A

p
p

lic
an

t

Page 26 of 109



1
1

3
 G

ar
fi

e
ld

 S
tr

e
e

t 
–

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

P
ro

vi
d

e
d

 b
y 

A
p

p
lic

an
t

Su
p

p
o

rt
in

g 
B

ea
m

s 
Fa

ili
n

g

Page 27 of 109



CITY COUNCIL ACTION REQUEST 

TO: Ron Smith, City Manager 

FROM: Sherry Ashley, Planning Director 

DATE: April 19, 2023  

ACTION NEEDED ON:  May 1, 2023 
  (Date of Council Meeting) 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Consider approving 2nd reading of AX23-05, an ordinance to annex the property located at the corner of 
James Farm Road and Glenway Drive. PIN #4745-78-7821 Falls Park (James Glen Multi-Family) 
property.  

1. Summary of Information: The property being considered for annexation has been submitted by Elevation
Acquisition & Development on behalf of Falls Park LLC. The parcel requesting annexation is approximately
16.73 acres and is located at the corner of James Farm Road and Glenway Drive. The property is the site
of the proposed James Glen Multi-Family Development. The James Glen Multi-Family Development
consists of 11 buildings and 264-units. The parcel being requested for annexation is located outside the
primary corporate limits of the City of Statesville but is within the Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction (ETJ); and is
zoned R-5MF CZ (High Density Multi-Family Residential Conditional Zoning) District. The applicant
requests voluntary annexation to utilize city water and sewer services.

2. Previous Council or Relevant Actions: The subject parcel was rezoned to R-5MF CZ (High Density
Multi-Family Residential Conditional Zoning) District on November 7, 2022; (Case #ZC22-20). The public
hearing for the annexation was held on May 1, 2023, and Council approved the first reading with a
unanimous vote. Chris LaMack representing the applicant was the only person to speak at the hearing.

3. Budget/Funding Implications: The current tax value of the parcel is listed as $709,180. The applicant
estimates that project value would be approximately $42.25M (appx. $160,000/unit). Both Iredell Water
Corporation and City of Statesville water is available, depending on life-safety requirements; City of
Statesville sewer service is available to serve the project; and Duke Energy will provide electric service.

4. Consequences for Not Acting: Without annexation the city would not collect property taxes. Without
annexation, the property owner could still access water and sewer at 2½ times the rate.

5. Department Recommendation: The Department recommends approving 2nd reading of the ordinance to
annex the property located at the corner of James Farm Road and Glenway Drive.

6. Manager Comments: Concur with the department’s recommendation.

7. Next Steps: If 2nd reading is approved, the annexation will become effective on May 31, 2023.

8. Attachments: In previous packet, no changes.

Page 28 of 109



CITY COUNCIL ACTION REQUEST 

TO: Ron Smith, City Manager 

FROM:  John Ferguson, Airport Manager 

DATE: May 3, 2023  

ACTION NEEDED ON:  May 15, 2023 
 (Date of Council Meeting) 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Consider approving a contract with Samet Corporation for the construction of the Airport 
Terminal building. 

1. Summary of Information: After a selection process, Samet Corporation was selected
based on qualifications of the firm. Guaranteed Maximum Price for the cost of the building
will be determined soon. The contract has been reviewed by the City Attorney and the
Architect, Lyndsey Architecture.

2. Previous Council or Relevant Actions: Approved selection of the Contractor at the May 1,
2023 Council meeting.

3. Budget/Funding Implications: 100% grant from the NC SCIF Funds.

4. Consequences for Not Acting: Building not constructed.

5. Department Recommendation: Airport management recommends approval.

6. Manager Comments: Recommend for approval.

7. Next Steps: Contractor will establish a Guaranteed Maximum Price for the construction of
the building and will establish a construction schedule as determined by the architectural
plans.

8. Attachments: Contract will be provided separately.

Page 29 of 109



CITY COUNCIL ACTION REQUEST 

TO: Ron Smith, City Manager 

FROM:  John Ferguson, Airport Manager 

DATE: May 3, 2023  

ACTION NEEDED ON:  May 15, 2023 
      (Date of Council Meeting) 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Consider approving Budget Amendment #2023-32 to move the interest accrued up to 
$30,000 on a $500,000 grant from the North Carolina SCIF Fund. 

1. Summary of Information: Per State policy, interest that accrues on SCIF funds must be
used for the stated purpose of the grant. This grant was used for hangar improvements and
land acquisition at the airport. This BA will move the interest that has accrued so that 100%
of the funds can be expended. These funds were used to purchase property on Eldorado
Road and hangar improvements to include LED lighting, replace hangar insulation, hangar
door replacement, and concrete steps to a hangar.

2. Previous Council or Relevant Actions: Approved to receive the funds.

3. Budget/Funding Implications: The airport has expended 100% of the grant funds.

4. Consequences for Not Acting: N/A

5. Department Recommendation: Airport staff recommends approval.

6. Manager Comments: Recommend for approval.

7. Next Steps: Transfer the funds.

8. Attachments: BA #2023-32

Page 30 of 109



ACCOUNT  TYPE DESCRIPTION
 CURRENT 

BUDGET 

 CHANGE 

(+ / -) 

 AMENDED 

BUDGET 

Airport Fund
519.0000.370.00.00 Revenue Investment Earnings - 30,000 30,000             

Total Revenues 500,000        30,000 530,000          

519.6515 Expenditure Contracted Services - Hangar Improvement 70,627           30,000          100,627          

Total Expenditures 500,000        30,000          530,000          

___________________________________________   ________________________________

 Budget Officer Interim CFO

APPROVED BY CITY COUNCIL:

___________________________________________

City Clerk

DESCRIPTION: To receipt Investment Earning revenues and to appropriate cooresponding expenditures in the Airport SCIF Fund

FUND / ACCOUNT #

CITY OF STATESVILLE
BUDGET AMENDMENT #2023-32

May 15, 2023

FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023

Page 31 of 109



CITY COUNCIL ACTION REQUEST 

TO: Ron Smith, City Manager 

FROM: David Onley, Chief of Police 

DATE: May 8, 2023  

ACTION NEEDED ON:  May 15, 2023 
 (Date of Council Meeting) 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Consider approving a request to transfer an insurance reimbursement in the amount of 
$32,500 to the Police Department and approval of Budget Amendment #2023-33.   

1. Summary of Information:  The City of Statesville received an insurance reimbursement
check in the amount of $32,500 for police vehicle #199 that was totaled last year in a vehicle
collision.  The Police Department is requesting those funds be placed in account # 010-
5100-74.00 for the purchase of a replacement vehicle.  The Police Department will utilize
these funds and funds existing in its vehicle maintenance account 010-5100-15.03 to pay for
a replacement vehicle and upfit.

2. Previous Council or Relevant Actions:  No prior Council action.

3. Budget/Funding Implications:  Costs associated with the purchase of a replacement
vehicle will be covered by the insurance reimbursement amount and existing funds in the
department’s vehicle maintenance account.

4. Consequences for Not Acting:  Failure to permit this request will not allow the agency to
replace the police vehicle and maintain a fully operational fleet.

5. Department Recommendation:  Staff recommend approving the request to transfer
insurance reimbursement funds to the Police Department to purchase a replacement
vehicle.

6. Manager Comments:

7. Next Steps:  If approved, staff will locate a new or used vehicle to replace vehicle #199.

8. Attachments:
1. BA #2023-33

Page 32 of 109



ACCOUNT  TYPE DESCRIPTION
 CURRENT 

BUDGET 

 CHANGE 

(+ / -) 

 AMENDED 

BUDGET 

Airport Fund
010.0000.380.10.00 Revenue Insurance Proceeds - 32,500 32,500             

Total Revenues 62,975,044   32,500 63,007,544     

010.5100 Expenditure Capital Outlay - Equipment 1,200,616     32,500          1,233,116       

Total Expenditures 62,975,044   32,500          63,007,544     

___________________________________________   ________________________________

 Budget Officer Interim CFO

APPROVED BY CITY COUNCIL:

___________________________________________

City Clerk

DESCRIPTION: To receipt Insurance Proceed revenues and to appropriate cooresponding expenditures in the Police Department.

FUND / ACCOUNT #

CITY OF STATESVILLE
BUDGET AMENDMENT #2023-33

May 15, 2023

FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023

Page 33 of 109



CITY COUNCIL ACTION REQUEST 

TO: Ron Smith, City Manager 

FROM: Sherry Ashley, Planning Director 

DATE: May 2, 2023  

ACTION NEEDED ON:   May 15, 2023 
  (Date of Council Meeting) 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Conduct a public hearing and consider approving first reading of AX23-07, an ordinance to annex PIN 
#4753-99-3612, a property located at 413 Twin Oaks Road submitted by Clayton Homes of Statesville. 

1. Summary of Information: The property being considered for annexation has been submitted by Clayton
Homes of Statesville. The parcel requesting annexation is approximately .5 acres and is located at 413
Twin Oaks Road (see attached Location Map and GIS Aerial Photo).

The applicant has placed a manufactured home on the property (see attached Boundary Survey and Site
Photos). The parcel being requested for annexation is located in the Iredell County zoning jurisdiction; and
is currently zoned Iredell County RA (Residential Agricultural) (see attached Current Zoning & Utilities
Map).

A City-initiated rezoning request will follow the annexation process; staff and the property owner support a
zoning designation of RA (Residential Agricultural) District, which mirrors the designation assigned to the
neighboring lot located inside the City limits (see attached Current Zoning and Utilities Map). The applicant
requests voluntary annexation to utilize city electric and water services.

2. Previous Council or Relevant Actions: As noted above, a city-initiated rezoning action will follow the
annexation.

3. Budget/Funding Implications: The current tax value of the parcel requesting annexation is $11,250. The
applicant estimates that the project value would be approximately $196,000. City of Statesville electric and
water services are available, a private septic system will be installed.

4. Consequences for Not Acting: Without annexation the city would not collect property taxes. Without
annexation, the property owner could still access water at 2½ times the rate.

5. Department Recommendation:  The department recommends approving first reading of the ordinance to
annex the property at 413 Twin Oaks Road.

6. Manager Comments: Concur with the department’s recommendation.

7. Next Steps: If approved, the 2nd reading will be on June 5, 2023.

8. Attachments:
1. Location Map
2. Boundary Survey
3. GIS Aerial Photo Map
4. Site Photo
5. Current Zoning & Utilities Map
6. Ordinance

Page 34 of 109



FANJOY RD

TWIN
OAKS RD

Ci
ty 

of 
Sta

tes
vil

le
Pla

nn
ing

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

ST
AT

ES
VI

LL
E 0

69
0

34
5

Fe
et

/
1 i

nc
h =

 41
6.6

66
66

7 f
eet

Le
ge

nd Su
bje

ct 
Pr

op
ert

y
Ex

ist
ing

 C
ity

 Li
mi

t

!.

Cl
ay

ton
 H

om
es 

of 
Sta

tes
vil

le
AX

23
-07

PIN
 # 

47
53

-99
-36

12

Page 35 of 109



Page 36 of 109



C
as

e 
N

o
. A

X
2

3
-0

7
 C

la
yt

o
n

 H
o

m
es

 o
f 

St
at

e
sv

ill
e 

A
er

ia
l P

h
o

to
 M

ap
 –

 P
IN

 #
 4

7
53

-9
9

-3
6

1
2

 

Page 37 of 109



 
 S

it
e 

P
h

o
to

 –
 A

X
2

3
-0

7
 C

la
yt

o
n

 H
o

m
es

 o
f 

St
at

es
vi

lle
 

 
 P

IN
 #

 4
75

3
-9

9
-3

6
1

2
 

 
 V

ie
w

 f
ro

m
 T

w
in

 O
ak

s 
R

o
ad

 lo
o

ki
n

g 
Ea

st
 o

n
to

 s
u

b
je

ct
 p

ar
ce

l. 

Page 38 of 109



 C
as

e 
N

o
. A

X
2

3
-0

7
 C

la
yt

o
n

 H
o

m
es

 o
f 

St
at

es
vi

lle
 

 C
u

rr
en

t 
Zo

n
in

g 
&

 U
ti

lit
ie

s 
M

ap
 –

 P
IN

 #
 4

7
5

3
-9

9
-3

61
2

 

Page 39 of 109



Page 1 of 2 

ORDINANCE NO. ________ 

AN ORDINANCE TO EXTEND THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH 
CAROLINA 

Clayton Homes of Statesville 
AX23-07 

4753-99-3612 

WHEREAS, the Statesville City Council has petitioned under G.S. 160A-58.1, to annex the area 
described below; and 

WHEREAS, the Statesville City Council has by resolution directed the Clerk to investigate the sufficiency 
of the petition; and 

WHEREAS, the City Clerk has certified the sufficiency of said petition and a public hearing on the 
question of this annexation was held at Statesville City Hall at 7:00 o’clock p.m. on the 15th day of May 2023 after 
due notice by publication on the 5th day of May 2023; and 

WHEREAS, the Statesville City Council finds that the area described therein meets the standards of G.S. 
160A-58. 1(b), to wit: 

a. The nearest point of the proposed satellite corporate limits is not more than three (3) miles
from the corporate limits of the City;

b. No point on the proposed satellite corporate limits is closer to another municipality than to
the City;

c. The area described is so situated that the City will be able to provide the same services
within the proposed satellite corporate limits that it provides within the primary corporate
limits;

d. No subdivision, as defined in G.S. 160A-376, will be fragmented by this proposed
annexation;

WHEREAS, the Statesville City Council further finds that the petition has been signed by all the owners 
of real property in the area who are required by law to sign; and  

WHEREAS, the Statesville City Council further finds that the petition is otherwise valid, and that the public 
health, safety and welfare of the City and of the area proposed for annexation will be best served by annexing 
the area described; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY the Statesville City Council of the City of Statesville, North 
Carolina that: 

Section 1.  By virtue of the authority granted by G.S. 160A-58.2, the following described noncontiguous 
territory is hereby annexed and made part of the City of Statesville, as of the 30th day of June 2023 at 11:59 p.m. 

Description 

All of these certain lots or parcels of land situated in Iredell County, North Carolina and more particularly 
described  as following: 

Being a 0.50 acre tract of property described in Deed Book 2917, Page 487; lying in Chambersburg 
Township, Iredell County, North Carolina; bounded by natural boundaries and/or lands now or formerly owned 
by and/or in possession of persons as follows: on the North by J. Brent McCombs (Deed Book 2429 Page 2297), 
on the East by Brandon Blaney (Deed Book 2423 Page 2131), on the South by Neil A. Garnett and wife, Valerie 
N. Garnett (Deed Book 1007 Page 299), and on the West by Twin Oaks Road (S. R. 2319) being more particularly
described by courses and distances at the surface according to a survey plat titled Boundary Survey for Clayton
Homes, being job number 230397, with a plat date of March 30th 2023 by Ted M. Benbow, PLS L-3175, as
follows:

BEGINNING at a 1 1/2" existing iron rod at the right-of-way for Twin Oaks Road (S.R. 2319) and being the 
southwest corner of subject property; 

Page 40 of 109



Page 2 of 2 

THENCE with Twin Oaks Road (S.R. 2319), North 04 degrees 11 minutes 14 seconds East for a distance of 
110.07 Feet to a 1 1/4" existing iron pipe THENCE with McCombs line, South 84 degrees 59 minutes 44 seconds 
East for a distance of 205.88 Feet to a 1" existing iron pipe; THENCE with Blaney line, South 14 degrees 37 
minutes 05 seconds East for a distance of 89.87 Feet to an existing flat iron; THENCE with Garnett line, South 
88 degrees 49 minutes 15 seconds West for a distance of 235.87 Feet to the point of beginning. 

Property Address:  413 Twin Oak Road, Statesville, NC 28625 

Section 2.  Upon and after June 30, 2023 at 11:59 p.m., the above-described territory and its citizens and 
property shall be subject to all debts, laws, ordinances and regulations in force in the City of Statesville and shall 
be entitled to the same privileges and benefits as other parts of the City of Statesville.  Said territory shall be 
subject to municipal taxes according to G.S. 160A-58.10. 

Section 3.  The Mayor of the City of Statesville shall cause to be recorded in the office of the Register of 
Deeds of Iredell County, and in the office of the Secretary of State at Raleigh, North Carolina, an accurate map 
of the annexed territory, described in Section 1 above, together with a duly certified copy of this ordinance.  Such 
a map shall also be delivered to the Iredell County Board of Elections, as required by G.S. 163-288.1. 

The Ordinance was introduced by a first reading by Council member ________, seconded by Council member 
_________, and unanimously carried on the 15th day of May 2023. 

AYES: 
NAYS: 

The second and final reading of this ordinance was heard on the 5th day of June 2023 and upon motion of Council 
member ___________, seconded by Council member ____________, and unanimously carried, was adopted. 

AYES: 
NAYS: 

The Ordinance to be in full force and effect from and after the 30th day of June 2023 at 11:59 p.m. 

City of Statesville 

Constantine H. Kutteh, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

____________________________ 
Brenda Fugett, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

____________________________ 
Leah Gaines Messick, City Attorney 

Page 41 of 109



Page 1 of 3 

CITY COUNCIL ACTION REQUEST 

TO: Ron Smith, City Manager 

FROM: Sherry Ashley, Planning Director 

DATE: May 3, 2022  

ACTION NEEDED ON:  May 15, 2022 
 (Date of Council Meeting) 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Conduct a public hearing and consider approving first reading of rezoning request ZC23-05, 
Greenbriar Ridge, Tax Parcel #4754-23-6335; a proposal for a major amendment to the 
concept plan for the rezoning of approximately 87.39 acres located on E. Greenbriar Road; 
zoned R-8CZ Cluster for the Greenbriar Ridge subdivision. 

1. Summary of Information:

Rezoning Request 
D.R. Horton, Inc. (applicant), on behalf of Chelsea L. Sharpe Heirs & Bettye Tull (owners), is
requesting significant changes (major amendment) to the concept map for Greenbriar Ridge
development; an 87.39-acre parcel of property, which was recently rezoned from R-A and R-
8 MFM to R-8 CZ Cluster Subdivision on October 3, 2022 to provide a single-family
residential development utilizing the Cluster Subdivision development pattern (see attached
Location and Current Zoning & Utilities maps).

The major significant changes are as follows: 

1. Development Phasing Lines moved.
2. Units developed in phases changed:

Phase 1 - From 99 units to 150 units
Phase 2 - From 145 units to 90 units (Revised to 92 units) (loss of 4 lots, revised loss 
of 2 lots) 

3. Shifted position of stormwater ponds
4. Public street layout changed
5. Creek crossing changed
6. Alteration to walking trail
7. Walking trail not showing in Phase 1
8. Portion of building lots have been repositioned or have a change in size

(See amended concept plan)

Evaluation 
The proposed project site is on approximately 87.39 wooded acres primarily located along 
the north side of East Greenbriar Road, generally between Industrial Drive and South 
Greenbriar Road in southeast Statesville (see attached Aerial Photo Map and Site Photos). 
The property was originally rezoned on October 3, 2022, and annexed on December 31, 

Page 42 of 109



Page 2 of 3 

2022.  There are the remnants of an existing home and outbuilding on the property that will 
require demolition permits. The intent is to amend the concept plan (major amendment) that 
will allow them to make changes to Open Space location, Public Road layout, Walking Trail 
routing and relocation of Development Phasing Lines. 

The significant changes are as follows: 

1. Some of the Open Space areas were decreased while some were increased, but the
applicant attests that the project still meets the open space requirements.  Need to
provide a table for open space on the plan. Table has been provided.

2. Some of the public streets inside the development have been moved, some removed,
and some added.  The creek crossing on the west side, near BMP A (sediment pond)
has been removed, while a new creek crossing has been added on the Northeast side,
near Open Space C (on the concept plan).  A new cul-de-sac has been added to the
Northwest end of Road L, close to the entrance from Ora Drive.  It is important to note
that the entrance to Ora Drive has not been changed.

3. The creek crossing for the walking trail near BMP B has been removed and the trail will
now continue along the West side of the creek to a new creek crossing where the new
road crosses the creek due Northeast of the former location.

4. Building lots 72 thru 93 have been moved around to accommodate the revisions.
5. BMP C and BMP D (stormwater ponds) have been shifted.
6. Finally, the development phasing lines have been re-drawn, shifting most of phase 1

toward the Eastern part of the development.  Phase 1 does not include the walking trail
as specified in the conditions of approval and the buffer in Northwest corner near Ora
Drive cannot be part of the lots. The concept plan has been revised since the Planning 
Board meeting. The walking trail is within Phase 1 and the 15 ft. buffer between lots 86, 
97, 98 and the adjacent property is in compliance. 

2. Previous Council/Relevant Actions: City Council approved the original rezoning request
on October 3, 2022 (see attached original conditions). The Planning Board at their April 25,
2023, meeting voted unanimously to approve the major amendment with the following
conditions: Contingent upon the applicant meeting all the former conditions of the original
rezoning (see original conditions) along with providing a table for open space calculations,
greenway must be constructed as part of Phase 1 and the buffer must be outside of lots.
The applicant has since submitted a revised concept plan with these corrections.

3. Budget/Funding Implications: The current total taxable value of the subject parcel is
approximately $460,610. The applicant estimates that the current tax value plus estimated
costs of land development construction is $17.5 million. City water, sewer and electrical
services are available. The city will need to provide sanitation, fire, and police services as
requested.

4. Consequences for Not Acting: The original approval would remain in place and the site
would have to be developed to the original plan.

5. Department Recommendation: The concept plan still exceeds the required active open
space and will provide a substantial amount of constructed greenway that will become part
of a designated corridor between Kimbrough Park to the Fourth Creek Greenway and
beyond.  In addition, the project continues to meet the density requirements and lot
standards of the Unified Development Code.  Although some of the public roads and
stormwater ponds have been slightly shifted or changed, they still meet the requirements.

Page 43 of 109



   

                                                

Page 3 of 3 
 

  

No Ingress or egress points were changed.  Finally, the change to the greenway trail is 
minimal and should have no detrimental effect on the project. 

 
 This is a procedural step per Section 2.07 (c) of the UDC, therefore substantial changes 

must be approved by the Planning Board and City Council.  
 
 Staff recommends approval of the major amendment contingent upon the applicant meeting 

all the former conditions of the original rezoning (see attached original conditions). 
 
6. Manager Comments: Concur with department’s recommendation. 
 
7. Next Steps: If approved, the second reading would be on June 5, 2023. 

 
8. Attachments: 

1. Location Map 
2. Current Zoning & Utilities Map 
3. Aerial Photo Map 
4. Site Photos 
5. Original Concept Plan 
6. Amended Concept Plan with highlighted changes  
7. 2045 LDP Land Use & Character Map  
8. Complete Neighborhood 2 Intent & Characteristics Sheet 
9. Ordinance 
10. Planning Board Consistency Statement 
11. Zoning Consistency Statement 
12. Original Conditions 
13. Certification of Mailed Notices 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 44 of 109



E G
REE

NBRIAR RD

OR
A D

R

KING ST

MT OLIVE RD

GA
Y 

ST

FREEDOM DR

EA
ST

OV
ER

 D
R

BR
O O

K F
IE

LD
DR

STOKES ST

CAPERST

BE
AUTY

 ST

JAPUL RD

INDUSTRIAL DR

BOULDER PL

SH
ER

RI
LL

DR

GE
RA

NI
UM

 D
R

CO
RE

TT
A A

VE

UNITY DR

MA
RI

GO
LD

 D
R

E CLO

ANIN
GE

RA
VE

LIBERTY ST

LA
KE

RI
DG

E D
R

ST
ON

EY
 LN

AB
ER

NA
TH

Y A
VE

EB
ON

Y 
CI

R

HUSKINS ST

WEAVER ST

STERLING ST

BEGONIA LN

LAKERUNDR

GRAHAM ST

MAHOGANY RID
GE

LN

Ci
ty 

of 
Sta

tes
vil

le
Pla

nn
ing

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

ST
AT

ES
VI

LL
E

0
1,1

00
55

0
Fe

et
/

1 i
nc

h =
 66

6.6
66

66
7 f

eet

Le
ge

nd Su
bje

ct 
Pr

op
ert

y
Ex

ist
ing

 C
ity

 Li
mi

t

!.

Gr
een

bri
ar 

Ri
dg

e
ZC

23
-05

PIN
 # 

47
54

-23
-63

35

Page 45 of 109



 C
as

e 
N

o
. Z

C
23

-0
5 

 C
u

rr
en

t 
Zo

n
in

g 
&

 U
ti

lit
ie

s 
M

ap
 –

 P
IN

 #
 4

7
5

4
-2

3
-6

33
5

 

Page 46 of 109



 
 C

as
e 

N
o

. Z
C

2
3

-0
5

 S
u

lli
va

n
 F

ar
m

 
  A

er
ia

l P
h

o
to

 M
ap

 –
 P

IN
 #

 4
75

4
-2

3
-6

33
5

 

Page 47 of 109



Site Photos – ZC23-05 Greenbriar Ridge 
(PIN # 4754-23-6335) E. Greenbriar Road 

  View from E. Greenbriar Road looking east onto the property 

 View from E. Greenbriar Road looking west onto the property 

Page 48 of 109



Page 49 of 109



Page 50 of 109



Page 51 of 109



  2
04

5
 L

an
d

 U
se

 &
 C

h
ar

ac
te

r 
M

ap
 –

 Z
C

2
3

-0
5

 G
re

en
b

ri
ar

 R
id

ge
 

  T
ax

 P
ar

ce
l M

ap
 #

 4
7

54
-2

3
-6

3
3

5
  

 
 S

u
b

je
ct

 P
ar

ce
l l

o
ca

ti
o

n
  –

 

Page 52 of 109



Page 53 of 109



Page 1 of 2 

ORDINANCE NO._______ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CONCEPT PLAN FOR THE REZONING OF 
APPROXIMATELY 87.39 ACRES LOCATED ON E. GREENBRIAR ROAD; ZONED R-8 CZ 
CLUSTER SUBDIVISION FOR A MAJOR AMENDMENT TO THE CONCEPT PLAN FOR 
GREENBRIAR RIDGE SUBDIVISION TO REARRANGE SOME OF THE INTERNAL STREETS 
AND RELOCATE COMMON OPEN SPACE. 

ZC23-05  
Chelsea L. Sharpe Heirs & Bettye Tull Property 

East Greenbriar Road 
PIN #4754-23-6335 

WHEREAS, A NOTICE TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC AND PARTICULARLY THE CITIZENS OF 
THE City of Statesville’s planning jurisdiction was duly given, notifying them of a public hearing to 
be held on May 15, 2023 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers at City Hall, 227 South Center 
Street, Statesville, North Carolina, for the purpose of considering a proposed ordinance for a 
major amendment to the concept plan for the Greenbriar Ridge subdivision to rearrange some of 
the internal streets and relocate common open space; said notice having been published in the 
Statesville Record and Landmark, a newspaper having general circulation in this area on May 5, 
2023 and May 12, 2023, all in accordance with the procedure set forth in N.C.G.S. 160A-360; and 

WHEREAS, said public hearing was duly held in accordance with law, and all persons present 
were given an opportunity to be heard on said proposed ordinance prior to any action being taken 
thereon by the City Council; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the zoning classification of the after described 
property as noted be changed as particularly set out below, said property being more particularly 
described as follows: 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

The land referred to herein below is situated in the County of Iredell, State of North Carolina, and 
is described as follows: 

A parcel of land lying and being in the City of Statesville, Chambersburg Township, Iredell County, 
North Carolina and being more particularly described as follows: 

For a Point of Reference, COMMENCE at an existing N.G.S. monument designated “RAMADA”, 
having NC Grid Coordinates of N: 742,379.98 E: 1,447,173.67. Thence South 85° 06’ 53” East 
4,717.62’ to an existing iron pipe, having NC Grid Coordinates of N: 741,978.22 E: 1,451,874.15, 
at the PLACE AND POINT OF BEGINNING. Thence North 04° 23’ 59” East 2,771.59’ to an 
existing iron pipe, thence South 86° 16’ 27” East 952.15’ to an existing iron pipe, thence continue 
South 86° 16’ 27” East 376.07’ to a set iron rod, thence South 02° 58’ 42” West 2,470.34’ to an 
existing ¾” iron pipe, thence South 02° 48’ 11” West 66.58’ to an existing iron rod with cap, thence 

Page 54 of 109



Page 2 of 2 

South 02° 59’ 08” West  269.52’ to an existing ¾” iron pipe, thence North 86° 50’ 00” West 499.24’ 
to an existing iron rod, thence North 15° 53’ 19” West 62.68’ to an existing iron pipe, thence South 
80° 42’ 23” West 277.56’ to a calculated point in the centerline of East Greenbriar Road, thence 
run North 86° 53’ 00” West 170.93’ to an existing iron rod, thence North 00° 33’ 02” West 50.04’ 
to a pinch top existing iron pipe, thence North 86° 46’ 22” West 110.56’ to an existing iron rod, 
thence North 86° 58’ 54” West 321.73’ to the PLACE AND POINT OF BEGINNING. Containing 
3,804,830 square feet or 87.35 acres, more or less. Subject to the portion of land lying within 
County Maintained right-of-way of East Greenbriar Road (S.R. 2320). 

Property Address: E. Greenbriar Road, Statesville NC 

This ordinance was introduced for first reading by Councilmember      , seconded by 
Councilmember  , and unanimously carried on the   day of     
, 2023. 

Ayes: 
Nays: 

The second and final reading of this ordinance was heard on the  day of 
___________, 2023 and upon motion of Councilmember  , seconded by 
Councilmember  , and unanimously carried, was adopted. 

Ayes: 
Nays: 

This ordinance is to be in full force and effect from and after the  day of ____________, 
2023. 

CITY OF STATESVILLE 

Constantine H. Kutteh, Mayor 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By: 
  Leah Gaines Messick, City Attorney 

ATTEST: 

Brenda Fugett, City Clerk 

Page 55 of 109



To: Statesville Planning Board 

From: Herman Caulder, Asst. Planning Director 

Date: April 25, 2023 

Subject: Zoning Consistency Statement – Planning Board 

Case: ZC23-05 Greenbriar Ridge 

Address: E. Greenbriar Road, Parcel # 4754-23-6335

 The zoning amendment is approved and is consistent with the City’s comprehensive land
use plan, is reasonable, and in the public interest because: The major amendment of
moving the streets and open space meets the 2005 Land Development Plan that suggests
that the property subject to the rezoning request is suitable for Medium Density residential
with a maximum density not exceeding 6 dwelling units per acre. The draft 2045 Land
Development Plan projects the parcel as suitable for Complete Neighborhood 2, which is
intended primarily for residential development and recommends many of the features—
gridded street network, connectivity between neighborhoods, pedestrian/bicycle facilities
and planned open space—proposed in the requested Concept Plan. At the proposed
gross density of 2.79 dwelling units per acre, the proposed development is significantly
less dense than the maximum density defined for Medium Density development by the
2005 LDP, as well as than the approximately five du/acre that the base R-8 zoning district
would permit. Additionally, this project fills in a substantial gap between existing
neighborhoods and provides beneficial improvements to both sides of E. Greenbriar Road
that includes a portion of a multi-use path recommended in the Mobility + Development
Plan. Finally, the concept plan exceeds the required active additional open space and will
provide a substantial amount of constructed greenway that will become part of a
designated corridor between Kimbrough Park to the Fourth Creek Greenway and beyond.

 In addition to approving this zoning amendment, this approval is also deemed an
amendment to the City’s comprehensive land use plan.  The change in
conditions the Planning Board has taken into account in amending the zoning
ordinance to meet the development needs of the community are as follows:

 The zoning amendment is rejected because it is inconsistent with the City’s
comprehensive land plan and is not reasonable and in the public interest
because

Date:  Todd Lange, Planning Board Chairman Date:  Herman Caulder, Asst. Planning Director 

Page 56 of 109



To: Statesville Planning Board 

From: Sherry Ashley, Planning Director 

Date: May 15, 2023 

Subject: Zoning Consistency Statement – City Council 

Case: ZC23-05 Greenbriar Ridge 

Address: E. Greenbriar Road, Parcel # 4754-23-6335

X The zoning amendment is approved and is consistent with the City’s comprehensive land 
use plan, is reasonable, and in the public interest because: The major amendments meet 
the 2045 Land Development Plan which projects the parcel as suitable for Complete 
Neighborhood 2, which is intended primarily for residential development and recommends 
many of the features—gridded street network, connectivity between neighborhoods, 
pedestrian/bicycle facilities and planned open space—proposed in the requested Concept 
Plan. Additionally, with the major amendments, this project fills in a substantial gap 
between existing neighborhoods and provides beneficial improvements to both sides of E. 
Greenbriar Road that includes a portion of a multi-use path recommended in the Mobility 
+ Development Plan. Finally, the concept plan exceeds the required active additional open
space and will provide a substantial amount of constructed greenway that will become part 
of a designated corridor between Kimbrough Park to the Fourth Creek Greenway and 
beyond. 

 In addition to approving this zoning amendment, this approval is also deemed an
amendment to the City’s comprehensive land use plan.  The change in
conditions the Planning Board has taken into account in amending the zoning
ordinance to meet the development needs of the community are as follows:

 The zoning amendment is rejected because it is inconsistent with the City’s
comprehensive land plan and is not reasonable and in the public interest
because

Date:  Constantine H. Kutteh, Mayor Date:  Sherry Ashley, Planning Director 

Page 57 of 109



Page 58 of 109



Page 59 of 109



Page 1 of 2 

CITY COUNCIL ACTION REQUEST 

TO: Ron Smith, City Manager 

FROM: Genesis Harrod, Senior Planner 

DATE: May 2, 2023 

ACTION NEEDED ON:  May 15, 2023 
      (Date of Council Meeting) 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Conduct a public hearing and consider approving a Resolution of Closure and 
Declaration of Withdrawal to permanently close a portion of Wall Street. 

1. Summary of Information: Mr. Holden Sabato, on behalf of SL Statesville LLC, had
petitioned for NCDOT, and now the City, to abandon a portion of Wall Street (see GIS
Vicinity Map and Abandonment Survey attached). The Silverman Group would like for
maintenance to be abandoned for their industrial development off Wall Street and Landson
Drive.

Wall Street is in the process of being abandoned by the North Carolina Department of
Transportation. The NCDOT supports the maintenance abandonment process and is
transferring maintenance of a 2,074 LF portion of Wall Street over to the City.

The abandonment of Wall Street officially began back on December 5, 2022. The process
proceeded past its public hearing but was halted because the applicant did not give notice to
a property owner. Therefore, the applicant must repeat the abandonment process to give
due notice to all property owners as required by law.

The abandonment process must follow the requirements of NCGS 160A-299.

2. Previous Council or Relevant Actions: On December 5, 2023, Council passed the
Resolution in Support of the NCDOT maintenance abandonment process and the
Resolution of Intent to Close, which began the public notification process and scheduled the
public hearing on January 9, 2023. The hearing was held, and council approved the closing
contingent upon the recombination of the two parcels to ensure access prior to closing.
However, after the public hearing, staff was contacted by Mr. West Hunter (Iredell Partners,
LLC) who owns property along Wall Street. Mr. Hunter did not get notification of the hearing.
Therefore, the process must be started over. The applicant agreed to restarting the
abandonment process and giving proper notice to all property owners.

3. Budget/Funding Implications: N/A

4. Consequences for Not Acting: Wall Street would remain and be maintained by the City.
The city would not abandon the portion of Wall Street, which in turn would affect the
proposed layout of the proposed industrial development along Wall Street.

Page 60 of 109



Page 2 of 2 

5. Department Recommendation: Section 8.06 A.5. c. of the UDC states that “streets should
connect with those already dedicated in adjoining or adjacent subdivisions”, thus Wall Street
has a grade separation intersection recommended to connect to Barkley Road W., as stated
in the 2019 Mobility + Development Plan (see attached, 3.10). However, Landson Drive is
proposed to be extended through the industrial development and stubbed for a future
connection to Barkley Road (see attached, 3.12b). The review criteria in Section 2.13 of the
UDC (see attached) are met by pursuing the maintenance abandonment process, as
neighborhood access is not restricted nor is health and safety impacted, since the remaining
portion of Wall Street will remain intact. It was brought to our attention that Mr. Hunter would
not have access to his property abutting Wall Street, if the current portion of Wall Street
indicated is abandoned as written. It is possible for the applicant to proceed with their
abandonment farther down the roadway, to provide access to Wall Street to Mr. Hunter’s
property. Therefore, staff’s recommendation is favorable to abandon a portion of Wall Street,
but to what extent will depend upon the findings of the public hearing.

6. Manager Comments: Concur with staff’s recommendation.

7. Next Steps: The survey and extent of the abandonment may need to be revised. If the
Resolution to Close and Declaration of Withdrawal documents are approved, they must be
recorded by the applicant along with the fully signed abandonment plat at the Iredell County
Register of Deeds.

8. Attachments:
1. Resolution to Close (with metes and bounds descriptions & survey)
2. Declaration of Withdrawal (with metes and bounds descriptions & survey)
3. GIS Vicinity Map
4. a. Collector Street: Mobility + Development Recommendations, 3.10

b. Intersection and Interchange: Mobility + Development Recommendations, 3.12b
5. Section 2.13 of the UDC

Page 61 of 109



Page 1 of 4 

RESOLUTION NO. ___ 
RESOLUTION OF STREET CLOSING 

RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA OFFICIALLY 
CLOSING WALL STREET AS MORE FULLY DESCRIBED ON THE ATTACHED EXHIBIT A 
AND SHOWN ON THE ATTACHED SURVEY PREPARED BY BOHLER ENGINEERING NC, 
PLLC DATED APRIL 12, 2023. 

WHEREAS, the City Council by Resolution No. 52-22, at its regular meeting on the 15th day of 
May, 2023, gave notice of its intention to close those certain portions of Wall Street as more fully 
described on the attached Exhibit A and shown on the attached survey prepared by Bohler 
Engineering NC, PLLC dated April 12, 2023, Exhibit B, and called for a public hearing thereon. 
The portion of the street described is not necessary for the reasonable means of ingress, egress or 
regress for property owners in the vicinity of the affected street and the closing of said street is not 
contrary to the public interest. 

WHEREAS, such Resolution of intention was published in the Statesville Record & Landmark on 
April 21, 2023, April 28, 2023, May 5, 2023, May 12, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, a copy of said Resolution of Intention was delivered by certified mail to the adjoining 
property owners; and 

WHEREAS, a notice of the closing and public hearing was prominently posted in at least two 
places along the street; and 

WHEREAS, the public hearing was held on May 15, 2023 concerning the closing and no 
opposition to the closing was heard; and 

WHEREAS, abandonment of the portion of the street is consistent with the Comprehensive Land 
Use Plan, Comprehensive Transportation Plan, and other adopted plans and policies of the City; 
and 

WHEREAS, it appears to the satisfaction of the City Council that closing the portion of the street is 
not contrary to the public interest and no individual owning property in the vicinity of the street 
would thereby be deprived of reasonable means of ingress and egress to their property; and 

WHEAREAS, this street abandonment does not adversely impact the health, safety, or welfare of 
the community, nor reduce the quality of public services provided to any parcel of land; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Wall Street as more fully described in Exhibit A and 
shown on the attached survey prepared by Bohler Engineering NC, PLLC dated April 12, 2023 be 
closed to the general public use. 

This the  day of , 2023. 

ATTEST: CITY OF STATESVILLE 
By: ___________________________ 

Brenda Fugett, City Clerk   Constantine H. Kutteh, Mayor 

Page 62 of 109



Page 2 of 4 

EXHIBIT A: LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
WALL STREET 

Beginning at L1 on the northeastern right of way of east Wall Street with a bearing of North 53° 00' 
07" West having a distance of 27.86 feet to a found $4 rebar. Thence; radius 194.85' of curve C1 
having distance of 251.05' with chord bearing N19°54'49"W and chord 234.04'. Thence; C2 of 
radius 194.85' having a distance of 50.37' with chord bearing S24°24'09"W and chord 50.23'. 
Thence; L2 South 28° 41' 39" West having a distance of 334.28 feet to a point. Thence; radius 
295.47'of curve C3 having distance of 164.78' with chord bearing S07°47'24"W and chord 162.66'. 
Thence; L3 South 17° 32' 12" East having a distance of 185.50' feet to a point. Thence; radius 
121.94' of curve C4 having distance of 120.15' with chord bearing S44°49'31"E and chord 115.35'. 
Thence; radius 805.32' of curve C5 having distance of 138.74' with chord bearing S78°16'59"E and 
chord 138.57'. Thence; L4 South S84° 06' 50" East having a distance of 135.20 feet to a point. 
Thence; radius 527.33' of curve C6 having distance of 241.25' with chord bearing S70°50'36"E and 
chord 239.15'. Thence; L5 South 57° 53' 40" East having a distance of 369.49 feet to a point. 
Thence; L6 South 12° 55' 40" West having a distance of 63.53 feet to a point. Thence; L7 North 
57° 53' 40" West having a distance of 390.44 feet to a point. Thence; radius 467.33' of curve C7 
having distance of 213.80' with chord bearing N70°50'00"W and chord 211.94'. Thence; L8 North 
84° 06' 50" West having a distance of 135.57 feet to a point. Thence; radius 865.32' of curve C8 
having distance of 149.70' with chord bearing N78°17'39"W and chord 149.51'. Thence; radius 
181.94' of curve C9 having distance of 178.90' with chord bearing N44°56'12"W and chord 171.78'. 
Thence; L9 North 17° 32' 12" West having a distance of 189.74 feet to a point. Thence; radius 
355.47' of curve C10 having distance of 61.02' with chord bearing N04°05'48"W and chord 60.94'. 
Thence; L10 South 89° 34' 56" East having a distance of 31.32 feet to a point. Thence; L11 North 
01° 02' 55" East having a distance of 145.97 feet to a point. Thence; L12 North 28° 41' 39" East 
having a distance of 332.73 feet to a point. Thence; radius 134.85 feet of curve C11 having 
distance of 211.90 feet with chord bearing N12°34'46"W and chord 190.76 feet. Thence; L123 
North 53° 00' 07" West having a distance of 117.03 feet to a point. Thence; L123 South 87° 36' 03" 
East having a distance of 120.37 feet to a point and place of beginning.  

Page 63 of 109



Page 3 of 4 

EXHIBIT B 

Page 64 of 109



Page 4 of 4 

Page 65 of 109



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF IREDELL 

DECLARATION OF WITHDRAWAL 

THIS DECLARATION OF WITHDRAWAL was made and entered this 15th day of May, 
2023 by the City of Statesville, a municipal corporation duly chartered with its principal office in 
Statesville, Iredell Couty, North Carolina. 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, SL Statesville LLC has requested that a portion of Wall Street located in the 
City of Statesville be closed; and 

WHEREAS, a full description of the streets to be closed is highlighted on the attached 
Exhibit “A” and shown on a survey prepared by Bohler Engineering NC, PLLC, dated April 12, 
2023, which is attached hereto as Exhibit “B” and the portions to be closed are not necessary 
for other property owners in the vicinity of the affected streets to have ingress, egress or regress 
to their property and are not contrary to the public interest; and 

WHEREAS, neither the City of Statesville nor any division of the state or county 
government will be required to maintain the street for the public use and the City of Statesville 
hereby does execute this withdrawal for the sole purpose of withdrawing the street affected from 
public dedication. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED and in consideration of the premises and for 
the purpose set forth above and under and by virtue of the provisions of North Carolina General 
Statute 160A-299, the City of Statesville by this instrument declares that certain portion of Wall 
Street highlighted on Exhibit “A” and shown on a survey prepared by Bohler Engineering NC, 
PLLC dated April 12, 2023, which is attached hereto as Exhibit “B”, hereby closed and the same 
is hereby withdrawn from public use to which it was heretofore dedicated. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Statesville has caused this instrument to be 
executed in its corporate name by its duly authorized officers and its corporate seal to be affixed 
hereto all by authority duly given on the date and year first above written. 

CITY OF STATESVILLE 

By: 
Constantine H. Kutteh, II, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Brenda Fugett, City Clerk 

Page 66 of 109



EXHIBIT A: LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
WALL STREET 

Beginning at L1 on the northeastern right of way of east Wall Street with a bearing of North 53° 
00' 07" West having a distance of 27.86 feet to a found $4 rebar. Thence; radius 194.85' of 
curve C1 having distance of 251.05' with chord bearing N19°54'49"W and chord 234.04'. 
Thence; C2 of radius 194.85' having a distance of 50.37' with chord bearing S24°24'09"W and 
chord 50.23'. Thence; L2 South 28° 41' 39" West having a distance of 334.28 feet to a point. 
Thence; radius 295.47'of curve C3 having distance of 164.78' with chord bearing S07°47'24"W 
and chord 162.66'. Thence; L3 South 17° 32' 12" East having a distance of 185.50' feet to a 
point. Thence; radius 121.94' of curve C4 having distance of 120.15' with chord bearing 
S44°49'31"E and chord 115.35'. Thence; radius 805.32' of curve C5 having distance of 138.74' 
with chord bearing S78°16'59"E and chord 138.57'. Thence; L4 South S84° 06' 50" East having 
a distance of 135.20 feet to a point. Thence; radius 527.33' of curve C6 having distance of 
241.25' with chord bearing S70°50'36"E and chord 239.15'. Thence; L5 South 57° 53' 40" East 
having a distance of 369.49 feet to a point. Thence; L6 South 12° 55' 40" West having a 
distance of 63.53 feet to a point. Thence; L7 North 57° 53' 40" West having a distance of 390.44 
feet to a point. Thence; radius 467.33' of curve C7 having distance of 213.80' with chord bearing 
N70°50'00"W and chord 211.94'. Thence; L8 North 84° 06' 50" West having a distance of 
135.57 feet to a point. Thence; radius 865.32' of curve C8 having distance of 149.70' with chord 
bearing N78°17'39"W and chord 149.51'. Thence; radius 181.94' of curve C9 having distance of 
178.90' with chord bearing N44°56'12"W and chord 171.78'. Thence; L9 North 17° 32' 12" West 
having a distance of 189.74 feet to a point. Thence; radius 355.47' of curve C10 having distance 
of 61.02' with chord bearing N04°05'48"W and chord 60.94'. Thence; L10 South 89° 34' 56" 
East having a distance of 31.32 feet to a point. Thence; L11 North 01° 02' 55" East having a 
distance of 145.97 feet to a point. Thence; L12 North 28° 41' 39" East having a distance of 
332.73 feet to a point. Thence; radius 134.85 feet of curve C11 having distance of 211.90 feet 
with chord bearing N12°34'46"W and chord 190.76 feet. Thence; L123 North 53° 00' 07" West 
having a distance of 117.03 feet to a point. Thence; L123 South 87° 36' 03" East having a 
distance of 120.37 feet to a point and place of beginning.  

Page 67 of 109



I77

WALL

BARKLEY

MORLAND

G
A

R
N

E
R

 B
A

G
N

A
L

S
A

LI
S

B
U

R
Y

RAMP

D
E

A
L

INDUSTRIAL

ROBIN
ROLLING

D
IA

M
O

N
D

HULL

DALLAS

LA
N

D
S

O
N

GREENLAND

SOWERS

RAMP I77

RAMP

S
T

A
T

E
S

V
IL

LE

W
al

l S
t. 

A
ba

n
do

nm
en

t

®
0

2
4

6
8

1
M

ile
s

D
at

e:
 O

ct
o

be
r 

1
3,

 2
02

2
S

ou
rc

e:
 C

ity
 o

f 
S

ta
te

sv
ill

e 
P

la
nn

in
g 

D
ep

a
rt

m
en

t

L
eg
e
n
d

A
ba

nd
on

m
en

t

Page 68 of 109



Page 69 of 109



Page 70 of 109



Section 2.13 – Abandonment of Streets, Easements or Plats 

F. Review Criteria

Prior to approval, the City Council shall find that: 

1. The abandonment conforms to State law;

2. The abandonment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, Major Street Plan and other

adopted plans and policies of the City;

3. The abandonment does not restrict access to any parcel or result in access that is

unreasonable, economically prohibitive, or devalues any property; [and]

4. The abandonment does not adversely impact the health, safety, or welfare of the

community, nor reduce the quality of public services provided to any parcel of land.

G. Decision Maker

The City Council shall approve, approve with conditions or deny approval of the application. 

Page 71 of 109



Page 1 of 2 

CITY COUNCIL ACTION REQUEST 

TO: Ron Smith, City Manager 

FROM: Sherry Ashley, Planning Director  

DATE: May 2, 2023 

ACTION NEEDED ON:  May 15, 2023 
 (Date of Council Meeting) 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Conduct a public hearing and consider approving first reading of TA23-07 Text 
Amendments to the Unified Development Code filed by the City of Statesville to amend 
Article 3 Zoning, Section 3.04 Zoning District Regulations; Table 3-1 Use Matrix. Article 5. 
Supplemental Regulations Performance/Standards for Specific Uses, Section 5.04 
Primary Uses and Structures, to include subsection III. Tobacco Shops; Article 6. 
Development Standards, Section 6.05 Lighting, 1-4; and amend definitions section for: 
Hookah, Vape, E-Cigarette, Cigar and Cigarette Shop/Lounge, Tobacco Paraphernalia 
and Tobacco Product to address the lighting standards and zoning districts pertaining to 
such uses. 

1. Summary of Information: The City of Statesville Planning Department is recommending an
amendment to the text of the Unified Development Code to address Hookah, Vape, E-
Cigarette, Cigar and Cigarette shops and Bar/lounges as well as the lighting thereof. The
proposed amendment to Article 3 Zoning, Section 3.04 Zoning District Regulations; Table 3-
1 Use Matrix. Article 5. Supplemental Regulations Performance/Standards for Specific Uses,
Section 5.04 Primary Uses and Structures, to include subsection III. Tobacco Shops; Article
6. Development Standards, Section 6.05 Lighting, 1-4; and amend definitions section for:
Hookah, Vape, E-Cigarette, Cigar and Cigarette Bar/Lounge, Tobacco Paraphernalia and
Tobacco Product limits the zoning districts and prohibits certain lighting (see proposed
ordinance).

This text amendment addresses vape shops, hookah bars and tobacco shops, including 
their intended use, which zoning districts to allow them and the lighting standards thereof. 
The amendment delineates between a “shop”, which is intended for its “primary” use to be 
the sell of such products and a “bar/lounge” whose “primary” use is to allow the consumption 
of such products.  Definitions are provided for the following:  

1. Hookah, Vape, E-Cigarette, Cigar and Cigarette Bar/Lounge
2. Tobacco Paraphernalia
3. Tobacco Product
4. Tobacco Store

It is noted that state law does not permit the sell of food or alcohol in a business whose 
primary purpose is to allow the consumption of such products. The city already has several 
existing tobacco shops that sell these products, and they are currently allowed in the B-2, B-

Page 72 of 109



Page 2 of 2 

3, B-4, CB, CBP, CB/H-115, B-5 and LI districts.  The amendment would only allow them in 
the B-4 and B-5 districts with supplemental regulations.  Finally, lighting would not be 
allowed to define, outline, or highlight any architectural feature of the building such as 
windows, doors, roof lines, eves, ownings, railings, etc.  Neon and LED signs would be 
allowed in windows as long as they are consistent with applicable sign regulations (see 
proposed ordinance). Changes/new text are highlighted and underlined and text to be 
removed in stricken through.  

2. Previous Council or Relevant Actions: On April 25, 2023, the Planning Board voted
unanimously to recommend approval.

3. Budget/Funding Implications: There are no budget implications based on this request
other than the newspaper notice.

4. Consequences for Not Acting:  The current UDC language would remain and vape shops,
hookah bars and tobacco shops would be allowed in B-2, B-3, CB CBP/H-115 and LI Zoning
Districts.

5. Department Recommendation: The department recommends approving the text
amendment as presented.

6. Manager Comments: Concur with department’s recommendations.

7. Next Steps:  If first reading of the draft ordinance is passed, the 2nd reading will be on June
5, 2023.

8. Attachments:
1. Proposed Ordinance

Page 73 of 109



ORDINANCE NO. ______ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE, ARTICLE 3 ZONING, 
SECTION 3.04 ZONING DISTRICT REGULATIONS; TABLE 3-1 USE MATRIX.  ARTICLE 5 
SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS PERFORMANCE/STANDARDS FOR SPECIFIC USES, 
SECTION 5.04 PRIMARY USES AND STRUCTURES, TO INCLUDE SUBSECTION III. 
TOBACCO SHOPS; ARTICLE 6 DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS, SETCTION 6.05 LIGHTING, 
1-4; AND AMEND DEFINITIONS SECTION FOR: TOBACCO SHOP, TOBACCO
PARAHERNALIA AND TOBACCO PRODUCT TO ADDRESS THE LIGHTING STANDARDS
AND ZONING DISTRICTS PERTAINING TO SUCH USES.

TA23-07 

WHEREAS, The City of Statesville Planning Department is recommending an amendment 
to the text of the Unified Development Code (UDC), addressing Hookah, Vape, E-Cigarette, Cigar 
and Cigarette Shop/Lounge and the location and lighting thereof; and 

WHEREAS, Staff have determined the proposed amendment is reasonable and allows 
for a use of property that is consistent with other similar land uses currently permitted within the 
district; 

WHEREAS, The amendments are the minimum necessary to accomplish the goals of the 
adopted City of Statesville Land Development Plan; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Statesville that 
the Unified Development Code (UDC) be amended as follows: 

1. Section 3.04 Zoning District Regulations – Table 3.1 Use Matrix  be amended as follows:

2. Section 5.04 Primary Uses and Structures – III. Tobacco Shop be amended as follows:

III. Tobacco Shop

1. An establishment intended for the sale of tobacco products (see definition) and
tobacco paraphernalia (see definition). This may also include hookah, vape, e-
cigarette, cigar and cigarette sales.  If on-site consumption is allowed, the use may not 
involve the on-site consumption of alcohol or food (i.e., bar and/or restaurant) 
consistent with North Carolina state regulations.  A grocery store, convenience store, 
or similar retail use that sells tobacco products or tobacco paraphernalia as an ancillary 
sale is not included in this definition. 

2. Use of neon and LED lighting shall be prohibited consistent with Section 6.05.
3. Shall not be located within 1,500 feet from another Tobacco Shop.

Page 74 of 109



3. Section 6.05 Lighting

1. All outdoor lighting shall comply with the performance standards contained in Section
5.05(1) of the Code. 

2. Outdoor lighting shall be so located as not to directly reflect on adjacent property, or on
public streets in such a manner as to adversely affect the enjoyment of adjacent property
or endanger the motorist traversing such public streets. This shall be achieved by a
number of methods including, but not limited to, shielding, orientation and lumen cast.

3. Lighting of Windows and Architectural Features:  Lighting is prohibited from being used to
define, outline or highlight windows or architectural features of the building (i.e. windows, 
doors, roof lines, eves, ownings, railings, etc.).  This prohibition shall not extend to the use 
of neon or LED signage in a window consistent with applicable sign regulations (see 

example below). 

4. Lighting of Businesses and Landscaped Areas:  Lighting fixtures shall be selected,
located, aimed and shielded so that direct illumination is focused exclusively on the 
building façade, plantings and away from adjoining properties, public or private rights-
of-way, and the night sky.  Where building faces are illuminated, lighting fixtures must 
be integrated within the architectural design of the buildings. 

• 4 . Section 9.02 Definitions – amend as follows:

Tobacco Shop (includes Hookah and Vape) – An establishment dedicated to the retail sale of 
tobacco, tobacco products (see definition), and/or tobacco paraphernalia (see definition) as 
its primary source of income, meaning more than 50 percent of gross monthly sales.  The sale 
of products shall include e-cigarettes, hookah and vape products/cartridges.  If consumption 
is allowed, the use may not involve the on-site consumption of alcohol or food (i.e., bar and/or 
restaurant) consistent with North Carolina state regulations.  A grocery store, convenience 
store, or similar retail use that sells tobacco products or tobacco paraphernalia as an ancillary 
sale is not included in this definition. 

Not Allowed. Allowed. 

Page 75 of 109



Tobacco Paraphernalia – Any equipment, device, or instrument that is primarily designed or 
manufactured for the smoking, chewing, absorbed, dissolved, inhaled, snorted, sniffed or 
ingested by any other means into the body of tobacco, tobacco products (see definition), or 
other controlled substances.  Items or devices classified as tobacco paraphernalia include, 
but are not limited to: pipes, electric pipes, e-cigarettes, e-cigarette juice, buzz bombs, 
vaporizers, hookahs and devices for holding burning material.  Lighters and matches are 
excluded from the definition of tobacco paraphernalia. 

Tobacco Product – Any product in leaf, flake, plug, liquid (such as e-cigarette liquid, vape 
cartridges, hookah products), or any other form, containing nicotine or tetrahydrocannabinol 
derived from the tobacco or hemp plant, or otherwise derived, which is intended to enable 
human consumption of the tobacco or nicotine in the product, whether smoked, chewed. 
Absorbed, dissolved, inhaled, snorted, sniffed or ingested by any other means.  For the 
purposes of this Code, this term excludes any product that has been specifically approved by 
the United States Food and Drug Administration for sale as a tobacco/smoking cessation 
product or for other medical purposes, where such product is marketed and sold solely for 
such an approved purpose. 

This ordinance was introduced for first reading by Council member ________________, 
seconded by Council member _______________, and unanimously carried on the   day of 
__________, 2023. 

AYES: 

NAYS: 

The second and final reading of this ordinance was heard on the ________ day of ____________, 
2023, and upon motion of Council member ________________, seconded by Council member 
__________, and unanimously carried, was adopted. 

AYES: 

NAYS: 

This ordinance is to be in full force and effect from and after the ______ day of _______, 2023. 

 CITY OF STATESVILLE 

Constantine H. Kutteh, Mayor 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 
ATTEST: 

Brenda Fugett, City Clerk Leah Gaines Messick, City Attorney 

Page 76 of 109



Page 1 of 2 

CITY COUNCIL ACTION REQUEST 

TO: Ron Smith, City Manager 

FROM: Sherry Ashley, Planning Director 

DATE: May 2, 2023 

ACTION NEEDED ON:  May 15, 2023 
    (Date of Council Meeting) 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Conduct a public hearing and consider approving first reading of TA23-08, Text 
Amendments to the Unified Development Code filed by the City of Statesville to amend 
Article 2. Development Review Process, Section 2.01 Application Process, Table 2-1: 
Summary of Application Procedures, Article 3. Zoning, Section 3.04 Zoning District 
Regulations, M. O-1-Office Single Lot District, N. O & I-2-Office and Institutional District, 
O.-1 – Neighborhood Service District, P. B-2 – Neighborhood Business District, Article 5. 
Supplemental Regulations/Performance Standards for Specific Uses, Section 5.04 
Primary Uses and Structures, Z. Dwellings, Planned Multi-family Dwellings and Article 6. 
Development Standards, Section 6.02 Density and Dimensional Standards, B. Residential 
Density, 2. to clarify regulations for Duplexes, Townhomes and Multi-family in O-1, O & 
I-2, B-1, and B-2 Zoning Districts.

1. Summary of Information: Due to continued growth within and around the city, additional
requests for Townhomes and Multi-family Developments are being made. In reviewing
several of these projects, staff has discovered there is some ambiguity in the language for
Townhomes and Multi-family developments in the O-1, O & I-2, B-1, and B-2 Zoning
Districts. In the City’s UDO, Townhomes and Multi-family developments are uses allowed in
these districts. However, the density is what is ambiguous.

Staff thinks the intent may have been to allow the O-1, O & I-2, B-1, and B-2 districts to be
considered a MF zone however the code does not indicate this. So, staff has consistently
been interpreting the code to allow density as follows:

Overall acreage divided by 5,000 sq. ft. to get number of units permitted. Staff used this
interpretation based on the language in the code which allows the use and the language that
states minimum lot size if used for residential purposes in 5,000 sq. ft. B-2 does not specify.

In addition, another interpretation could be that there are no density limitations in these
districts.

However, after further discussion with management, I think the intent was to allow these
districts to be MF zones. In staff’s opinion, the best option is to remove any ambiguity by
amending the code to allow the O-1, O & I-2, B-1 and B-2 to use the R-5MF Density
calculations. Calculations in the R-5MF District are as follows:

Page 77 of 109



Page 2 of 2 

Townhomes- Overall acreage divided by 5,000 sq. ft. to get number of Townhome units 
permitted. May reduce lot size from 5,000 sq. ft. to 2,000 sq. ft. for open space trade-off. 

Example - 10 acres = 435,600 divided by 5,000 sq. ft. = 87.12 or 87 Townhomes units 

87 units reduce from 5,000 sq. ft. to 2,000 sq. ft. = 261,000 sq. ft. of open space (5.99 acres) 

Multi-family - Minimum lot size 7,500 sq. ft. for units 1 and 2, plus 2,500 sq. ft. for each 
additional unit.  Example - 100 units would require 5.79 acres. 

2. Previous Council or Relevant Actions: On April 25, 2023, the Planning Board voted 6 to 1
to recommend approval.

3. Budget/Funding Implications: There are no budget implications based on this request
other than the newspaper notice.

4. Consequences for Not Acting:  The current UDC language would remain ambiguous, and
staff would continue to interpret the multi-family in these districts by division of overall
acreage by 5,000 sq. ft.

5. Department Recommendation: The department recommends approving the text
amendment as presented.

6. Manager’s Comments:

7. Next Steps:  If first reading of the draft ordinance is approved, the 2nd reading will be on
June 5, 2023.

8. Attachments:
1. Proposed Ordinance

Page 78 of 109



Page 1 of 7 

ORDINANCE NO. ______ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE, ARTICLE 2. 
DEVELOPMENT REVIEW PROCESS, SECTION 2.01 APPLICATION PROCESS, TABLE 2-1: 
SUMMARY OF APPLICATION PROCEDURES, ARTICLE 3. ZONING, SECTION 3.04 ZONING 
DISTRICT REGULATIONS, M. O-1 – OFFICE SINGLE LOT DISTRICT, N. O & I-2 – OFFICE 
AND INSTITUTIONAL DISTRICT, O. B-1 – NEIGHBORHOOD SERVICE DISTRICT, P. B-2 – 
NEIGHBORHOOD BUSINESS DISTRICT, ARTICLE 5. SUPPLEMENTAL 
REGULATIONS/PERFORMANCE STANDARDS FOR SPECIFIC USES, SECTION 5.04 
PRIMARY USES AND STRUCTURES, Z. DWELLINGS, PLANNED MULTI-FAMILY 
DWELLINGS AND ARTICLE 6. DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS, SECTION 6.02 DENSITY AND 
DIMENSIONAL STANDARDS, B. RESIDENTIAL DENSITY, 2. TO CLARIFY REGULATIONS 
FOR DUPLEXES, TOWNHOMES AND MULTI-FAMILY IN O-1, O&I-2, B-1 AND B-2 ZONING 
DISTRICTS 

TA23-08 

WHEREAS, City Council would like to clarify the regulations for Duplexes, Townhomes and Multi-
family development in the O-1, O & I-2, B-1 and B-2 Districts by amending the Unified 
Development Ordinance:  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Statesville that Articles 
2. Development Review Process, Article 3. Zoning, Article 5. Supplemental 
Regulations/performance standards for Specific Uses, and Article 6. Development Standards be 
amended as follows: 

• Amend Article 2. Development Review Process, Section 2.01 Application Process,
Tale 2-1 Summary of Application Procedures as follows:

Table 2-1: Summary of Application Procedures 

Action Recommending 
Agency 

Decision 
Maker 

Decision 
Type 

Applicable 
Sections 

Notice Public Hearing 

Other Development Applications 

Multi-family 
Development in 

R-8MF &
R-5MF

TRC & Planning 
Board 

City Council Quasi-
Judicial 

2.15 Publication, 
letter, sign 

Yes 

• Amend Article 3. Zoning, Section 3.04 Zoning District Regulations, M. O-1 – Office
Single Lot District, N. O & I-2 – Office and Institutional Complex District, O. B-1 –
Neighborhood Service District, P. B-2 – Neighborhood Business District as follows:

M. O-1 - Office Single Lot District

Purpose:  The purpose of this district is to 
provide a high-quality environment for 
professional offices and services conducted 

DIMENSIONAL AND RATIO STANDARDS: 

Minimum Lot Size 5,000 sq. ft. (see note 2) 

Page 79 of 109



Page 2 of 7 

entirely within buildings. This district also 
allows converting residential homes into 
compatible office uses while maintaining the 
residential characteristics. 

Authorized Uses: Authorized Uses: Uses 
permitted in this zoning district shall be 
limited to those indicated in Table 3-1, which 
include a variety of office and institutional 
uses not principally engaged in sales of 
goods. 

Minimum Lot Width (at 
front setback line) 

50 ft. 

Front Setback: 25 ft. 

Corner Lot Setback (lot 
with frontage on 2 
streets): 

See note 3 

Side Setback: 10 ft. 

Rear Setback: 25 ft. 

Maximum Height Limit: 35 ft. 

Figure 3-12: Minimum O-1 Typical Building Envelope 
(Single-Family Residence) – figure not to scale. 

Development Notes: 

1. Development shall comply with additional development standards as contained in Article 6.
2. Parcels zoned O-1 used for residential purposes shall meet the minimum 5,000 sq. ft.

minimum lot size for the district. O-1 used for Multi-family or Townhomes shall meet the R-
5MF standards.

3. When a lot abuts more than one (1) street the front yard setback shall apply to the rear or
side abutting a street. Where there is no lot fronting on the side or rear street immediately to
the rear or side of the lot, the width of the side yard shall be equal to one-half (½) the front
yard requirement.

4. Residential density shall be in accordance with the provisions of Section 6.02 (B) of this
Ordinance.

5. On-site wastewater disposal shall be provided by public utilities (i.e. water and sewer).

Page 80 of 109



Page 3 of 7 

N. O & I-2 - Office and Institutional Complex District

Purpose:  The purpose of this district is to 
accommodate larger office and institutional 
development, including office parks and 
complexes with increased impacts on 
surrounding land uses, such as increased 
traffic.  

Authorized Uses: Uses permitted in this 
zoning district shall be limited to those 
indicated in Table 3-1, which include a 
variety of office and institutional uses not 
principally engaged in sales of goods.  

DIMENSIONAL AND RATIO STANDARDS: 

Minimum Lot Size 10,000 sq. ft. (see 
note 2) 

Minimum Lot Width (at 
front setback line) 

75 ft. 

Front Setback: 25 ft. 

Corner Lot Setback (lot 
with frontage on 2 
streets): 

See note 3 

Side Setback: 10 ft. 

Rear Setback: 25 ft. 

Maximum Height Limit: 50 ft. 

Figure 3-12: Minimum O&I-2 Typical Building Envelope 
(Single-Family Residence) – figure not to scale. 

Development Notes: 

1. Development shall comply with additional development standards as contained in Article
6.

2. Parcels zoned O&I-2 used for residential purposes shall meet the minimum 5,000 sq. ft.
minimum lot size. O&I-2 used for Multi-family and Townhomes shall meet the R-5MF
standards.

3. When a lot abuts more than one (1) street the front yard setback shall apply to the rear
or side abutting a street. Where there is no lot fronting on the side or rear street
immediately to the rear or side of the lot, the width of the side yard shall be equal to one-
half (½) the front yard requirement.

4. Residential density shall be in accordance with the provisions of Section 6.02 (B) of this
Ordinance.

5. On-site wastewater disposal shall be provided by public utilities (i.e. water and sewer).

Page 81 of 109



Page 4 of 7 

O. B-1 - Neighborhood Service District

Purpose:  The purpose of this district is to 
accommodate commercial activities that 
provide services to the residents of a 
particular neighborhood, such as limited 
personal services and everyday retail 
needs.  

Authorized Uses: Uses permitted in this 
zoning district shall be limited to those 
indicated in Table 3-1, which includes the 
sale of goods and services at a 
neighborhood scale.  

DIMENSIONAL AND RATIO STANDARDS: 

Minimum Lot Size 6,000 sq. ft. (see 
note 2) 

Minimum Lot Width (at 
front setback line) 

60 ft. 

Front Setback: 30 ft. 

Corner Lot Setback (lot 
with frontage on 2 
streets): 

See note 3 

Side Setback: 10 ft. 

Rear Setback: 25 ft. 

Maximum Height Limit: 35 ft. 

Figure 3-12: Minimum B-1Typical Building Envelope 
(Single-Family Residence) – figure not to scale. 

Development Notes: 

1. Development shall comply with additional development standards as contained in Article
6.

2. Parcels zoned B-1 used for residential purposes shall meet the minimum 5,000 sq. ft.
minimum lot size. B-1 used for Multi-family and Townhomes shall meet the R-5MF
standards.

3. When a lot abuts more than one (1) street the front yard setback shall apply to the rear
or side abutting a street. Where there is no lot fronting on the side or rear street
immediately to the rear or side of the lot, the width of the side yard shall be equal to one-
half (½) the front yard requirement.

Page 82 of 109



Page 5 of 7 

4. Residential density shall be in accordance with the provisions of Section 6.02 (B) of this
Ordinance.

5. On-site wastewater disposal shall be provided by public utilities (i.e. water and sewer).

P. B-2 - Neighborhood Business District

Purpose:  The purpose of this district is to 
accommodate commercial activities along 
collector streets and thoroughfares, 
including the provision of goods and 
services to the local community.  

Authorized Uses: Uses permitted in this 
zoning district shall be limited to those 
indicated in Table 3-1, which includes 
professional and institutional offices and 
convenience and retail stores. 

DIMENSIONAL AND RATIO STANDARDS: 

Minimum Lot Size 6,000 sq. ft. 

Minimum Lot Width (at 
front setback line) 

60 ft. 

Front Setback: 30 ft. 

Corner Lot Setback (lot 
with frontage on 2 
streets): 

See note 2 

Side Setback: 10 ft. 

Rear Setback: 25 ft. 

Maximum Height Limit: 50 ft. 

Figure 3-12: Minimum B-2Typical Building Envelope 
(Single-Family Residence) – figure not to scale. 

Development Notes: 

1. Development shall comply with additional development standards as contained in Article 6.
2. B-2 used for Multi-family and Townhomes shall meet the R-5MF standards.

3. When a lot abuts more than one (1) street the front yard setback shall apply to the rear or side
abutting a street. Where there is no lot fronting on the side or rear street immediately to the rear or
side of the lot, the width of the side yard shall be equal to one-half (½) the front yard requirement.

Page 83 of 109



Page 6 of 7 

• Amend Article 5. Supplemental Regulations/Performance Standards for
Specific Uses, Section 5.04 Primary Uses and Structures, Z. Dwellings,
Planned Multi-family Developments as follows:

Z. Dwellings, Planned Multi-Family Developments

A planned multi-family development, which shall contain two (2) or more multi-family buildings, 
three (3) or more duplexes or any combination of units thereof, established on a single 
development tract, using a unified design elements and coordinated organization of open space 
and service areas and developed according to an approved site plan, may be permitted subject 
to the following: 

1. Planned multi-family development shall only be allowed in the R-8MF Medium Density
Multi-Family Residential District, and the R-5MF High Density Multi-Family Residential
District, the O-1 Office Single Lot District, the O&I-2 Office and Institutional Complex
District, the B-1 Neighborhood Service District and the B-2 Neighborhood Business
District subject to the following requirements: 

• Amend Article 6. Development Standards, Section 6.02 Density and
Dimensional Standards, B. Residential Density 2. as follows:

2. Multi-Family and Townhomes

R-8MF minimum lot size 12,000 sq. ft. for units 1 and 2, plus 4,000 for each additional
unit.  Example: 100 units would require 9.27 acres

R-5MF, O-1, O&I-2, B-1 and B-2 minimum lot size 7,500 sq. ft. for units 1 and 2, plus
2,500 ft. for each additional unit.  Example: 100 units would require 5.79 acres.

This ordinance was introduced for first reading by Council member ________________, 
seconded by Council member _______________, and unanimously carried on the ____ day of 
__________, 2023. 

AYES: 
NAYS: 

The second and final reading of this ordinance was heard on the ________ day of 
____________, 2023, and upon motion of Council member ________________, seconded by 
Council member __________, and unanimously carried, was adopted. 

AYES: 
NAYS: 

This ordinance is to be in full force and effect from and after the ______ day of ____________, 
2023. 

CITY OF STATESVILLE 

Constantine H. Kutteh, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM 

Page 84 of 109



CITY COUNCIL ACTION REQUEST 

TO: Ron Smith, City Manager 

FROM: David Onley, Chief of Police 

DATE: May 04, 2023  

ACTION NEEDED ON:  May 15, 2023. 
 (Date of Council Meeting) 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Consider approving first reading of an ordinance to prohibit camping and improper use 
of City property.   

1. Summary of Information: The City of Statesville has seen a rise in the use of City
properties to camp, store personal property and erect temporary shelters. To address this
increase, surrounding cities have enacted ordinances prohibiting the misuse of city
properties. The attached ordinance will allow officers to address the public safety concerns
surrounding camping, creating campfires or bonfires, storing personal property and other
prohibited activities.

The Statesville Police Department remains dedicated to working with community partners to
assist individuals in need of temporary shelter. Passage of this ordinance will not diminish
these efforts but will enhance our ability to address this growing issue.

2. Previous Council or Relevant Actions:  No prior Council action.

3. Budget/Funding Implications:  Costs associated with the posting of signage.

4. Consequences for Not Acting:  Failure to pass the ordinance will prevent city employees
from removing individuals and items from city properties.

5. Department Recommendation: Staff recommends approving the ordinance to prohibit
camping and improper use of city properties.

6. Manager Comments: Concur with the department’s recommendation.

7. Next Steps:  If approved, staff will begin educating the public and notifying those in violation
of the ordinance.

8. Attachments:
1. Ordinance

Page 85 of 109



Page 1 of 2 

ORDINANCE NO. ____ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 14, ARTICLE II OF THE CODE OF THE CITY OF 
STATESVILLE, TO PROHIBIT CAMPING AND IMPROPER USE OF CITY PROPERTY 

WHEREAS, the City of Statesville has seen an increase in city property being utilized to camp 
and/or store personnel items; and 

WHEREAS, this activity has created a public nuisance for the citizens of Statesville ; and 

WHEREAS, prohibiting improper use and camping on City of Statesville Property will increase 
safety for the residents of Statesville and those visiting the city. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Statesville that 
Chapter 14, Article II of the Code of the City of Statesville be amended by adding the following 
to the official ordinance file maintained by the City Clerk: 

Sec. 14- ___. - Definitions. 

The following words, terms, and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the meanings 
ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning: 

Camp or camping. Use of city property, public streets, sidewalks, rights-of-way, and public 
parking lots for living accommodation purposes such as sleeping or making preparations to 
sleep (including the laying down of bedding for the purpose of sleeping), or storing personal 
belongings, or placing any tents or a temporary shelter on such property for living 
accommodation purposes. 

Public Park. All municipal parks, public playgrounds, public plazas, attractions, and monuments. 

Public property. All public or municipal buildings, facilities, structures, properties upon which the 
buildings, facilities or structures are located, lots, parcels, and any other public properties. 

Storing personal property. Leaving one's personal effects, such as, but not limited to, clothing, 
bedrolls, cookware, sleeping bags, luggage, knapsacks, pushcarts for personal belongings, or 
backpacks, unattended for any substantial prolonged length of time. The term "storing personal 
property" shall not include parking a bicycle or other mode of transportation. 

Temporary shelter. Tents, tarps, or any type of structure or cover that provides partial shelter for 
persons, animals, or personal property from the elements. 

Sec. 14-___. - Prohibited activities. 

(a) It shall be unlawful for anyone to camp or store personal property on any public property
owned by the City including public parks, public streets, public rights-of-way, and sidewalks.

(b) It shall be unlawful to place tents, temporary shelters or other camping gear on public
property owned by the City regardless of whether the tents are occupied and/or contain bedding
or camping gear except in locations designated for camping by the City Council.

(c) It shall be unlawful to leave a tent or temporary shelter or to store personal property as
defined above on any public property owned by the City.

(d) It shall be unlawful to light or use a campfire or bonfire on public property except in a location
designated by the City Council for such use.

Page 86 of 109



Page 2 of 2 

Sec. 14-___. - Enforcement and penalties. 

(a) Public nuisance. Any activity prohibited under this article is hereby declared to constitute a
public nuisance. Anyone camping attempting to camp or placing any tent or temporary shelter
on city property in making preparations to sleep or store personal belongings without written
permission to do so, shall be directed by any duly sworn law enforcement officer or city
employee having authority to do so to cease such activity and to remove any camping gear or
personal belongings from city property. Any duly sworn law enforcement officer or city employee
may summarily remove any tent, temporary shelter, bedding, or personal belongings from city
property.

(b) Extinguishing campfire or bonfire. Lighting or using a campfire or bonfire on city property
poses a potential danger to the public and unless permitted to do so, any person lighting or
using a bonfire on city property shall be directed to stop, to extinguish any burning material, and
to remove same once that can be safely done. Any duly sworn law enforcement officer or city
employee may summarily extinguish any burning material.

(c) A violation of this article may be punishable as a Class 3 misdemeanor subject to a fine not
to exceed five hundred dollars ($500.00) or imprisonment not exceeding thirty (30) days
pursuant to G.S. 14-4 and G.S. 160A-175.

(d) Applicable state law. A violator of this article is also subject to arrest for violation of state
trespass statutes G.S. 14-159.12.

This ordinance was introduced for first reading by Council member ______, seconded by 
Council member ____, and unanimously carried on the ____ day of ________, 2023. 

AYES: 
NAYS: 

The second and final reading of this ordinance was heard on the ___ day of ______, 2023, and 
upon motion of Council member _______, seconded by Council member ___________, and 
unanimously carried, was adopted. 

AYES: 
NAYS: 

This ordinance is to be in full force and effect from and after the ______ day of ____________, 
2023. 

CITY OF STATESVILLE 

Constantine H. Kutteh, Mayor 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

ATTEST: Leah Gaines-Messick, City Attorney 

Brenda Fugett, City Clerk 

Page 87 of 109



CITY COUNCIL ACTION REQUEST 

TO: Ron Smith, City Manager 

FROM: Matthew L. Pierce, Assistant to the City Manager 

DATE: May 04, 2023 

ACTION NEEDED ON:    May 15, 2023  
        (Date of Council Meeting) 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Consider authorizing the upset bid procedure for 1203 Free Nancy Ave (PIN 4745-54-
1924.000) and 1213 Free Nancy Ave (PIN 4745-43-9618.000). 

1. Summary of Information:

• 1203 Free Nancy Ave (PIN 4745-54-1924.000) and 1213 Free Nancy Ave (PIN 4745-
43-9618.000) (i.e., “the properties”) lie south of Interstate 40 along Free Nancy Avenue.

• The properties are zoned B-4 (“Highway Business District”).

• Lane Construction currently has a lease on the properties until July 2024.

• The Statesville Greenway runs along the southern and western portion of 1213 Free
Nancy Ave (PIN 4745-43-9618.000).

• Arneson Park Associates Partnership donated PIN 1213 Free Nancy Ave / PIN 4745-
43-9618.000 to the city “for recreation and park uses.”

• Sale of the properties is conditioned upon the following:

o retention of twelve (12) existing parking spots,
o addition of eight (8) additional parking spots,
o buyer must provide and install a minimum of six (06) directional signs to the

greenway as well as hours of use (sunrise to sunset),
o City will retain an easement of approximately fifty feet from top of bank on the

western portion of PIN 4745-54-1924.000, and
o the southern portion of 1213 Free Nancy Ave/PIN 4745-43-6918.000 will be

separated from the remaining portion of the parcel and will be retained by the City
as City property.

2. Previous Council or Relevant Actions:

• July 15, 2010—Receipt of donation of 1203 Free Nancy Ave / PIN 4745-54-1924.000

• December 13, 2012—Receipt of donation of 1213 Free Nancy Ave / PIN 4745-43-
9618.000

3. Budget/Funding Implications:  Jai Amba Maa (JAM) Hospitality Statesville has made an
introductory offer of $650,000 for the properties.  Unless otherwise specified, proceeds from
the sale will be added to the General Fund.

Page 88 of 109

https://library.municode.com/nc/statesville/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=CO_APXAUNDECO_ART3ZO_S3.01ESZODI


4. Consequences for Not Acting:  Council is at liberty either to initiate or not initiate the sales
process for this parcel.  If Council does not proceed with sales process, parcel will remain
within the City’s portfolio.

5. Department Recommendation: Initiate the upset bid procedure for PIN 4745-54-1924.000
and PIN 4745-43-9618.000.

6. Manager Comments: Recommend moving through the upset bid process.

7. Next Steps: The City Clerk to advertise the sale of the property per NCGS § 160A-269
requirements, accepting bids until no further qualifying upset bids are received. City staff
will also have the property posted on MLS.

8. Attachments:
1. Resolution Authorizing Upset Bid Process for PIN 4745-54-1924.000 and PIN 4745-43-

9618.000
2. Offer to Purchase and Contract from Jai Amba Maa (JAM) Hospitality Statesville
3. Recombination Plat for PIN 4745-54-1924.000 and PIN 4745-43-9618.000
4. Minute Book 24, Pages 1, 8; City of Statesville Pre-Agenda Minutes from July 15, 2010
5. North Carolina General Warranty Deed for 1203 Free Nancy Ave / PIN 4745-54-

1924.000
6. Minute Book 24, Page 525-8, City of Statesville Pre-Agenda Minutes from December

13, 2012
7. North Carolina General Warranty Deed for 1213 Free Nancy Ave / PIN 4745-43-

9618.000 (Book 2464, Page 1337-40)

Page 89 of 109



RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE UPSET BID PROCESS FOR 

PIN #4745-54-1924.000 AND PIN #4745-43-9618.000 

WHEREAS, the City of Statesville owns certain properties, 1203 Free Nancy Ave (PIN 4745-54-1924.000) and 

1213 free Nancy Ave (PIN 4745-43-9618.000), located along Free Nancy Ave; and 

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute §160a-269 permits the city to sell property by upset bid, after 

receipt of an offer for the property; and 

WHEREAS, the city has received an offer to purchase the property described above, in the amount of $650,000, 

submitted by jai amba maa (jam) hospitality Statesville; and 

WHEREAS, Jai Amba Maa (JAM) hospitality Statesville has paid the required five percent (5%, $32,500) 

deposit on its offer; 

THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STATESVILLE RESOLVES THAT: 

1. The City Council authorizes sale of the property described above through the upset bid procedure of

North Carolina General Statute §160a-269.

2. The City Clerk shall cause a notice of the proposed sale to be published. The notice shall describe the

property and the amount of the offer and shall state the terms under which the offer may be upset.

3. Persons wishing to upset the offer that has been received shall submit a sealed bid with their offer to the

office of the City Clerk within 10 days after the notice of sale is published. At the conclusion of the

10-day period, the City Clerk shall open the bids, if any, and the highest such bid will become the new

offer. If there is more than one bid in the highest amount, the first such bid received will become the new

offer.

4. If a qualifying higher bid is received, the City Clerk shall cause a new notice of upset bid to be published

and shall continue to do so until a 10-day period has passed without any qualifying upset bid having been

received. At that time, the amount of the final high bid shall be reported to the City Council.

5. A qualifying higher bid is one that raises the existing offer by not less than ten percent (10%) of the first

$1,000.00 of that offer and five percent (5%) of the remainder of that offer.

6. A qualifying higher bid must also be accompanied by a deposit in the amount of five percent (5%) of the

bid; the deposit may be made in cash, cashier’s check, or certified check. The city will return the deposit

on any bid not accepted and will return the deposit on an offer subject to upset if a qualifying higher bid

is received. The city will return the deposit of the final high bidder at closing.

7. The terms of the final sale include

— the conditions for the sale as laid out in the offer to purchase and contract by Jai Amba Maa (JAM)

hospitality Statesville,

— That the City Council must approve the final high offer before the sale is closed, which it will do within

30 days after the final upset bid period has passed, and

— that the buyer must pay with cash at the time of closing.

8. The city reserves the right to withdraw the property from sale at any time before the final high bid is

accepted and the right to reject at any time all bids.

Adopted May 15, 2023 

ATTEST:  City of Statesville 

Brenda Fugett, City Clerk Constantine H. Kutteh, Mayor 

Page 90 of 109



OFFER TO PURCHASE AND CONTRACT 

Jai Amba Maa (JAM) Hospitality Statesville , (a North Carolina limited liability 
company) or assigns as Buyer, hereby offers to purchase and City of Statesville (a North Carolina 
municipality) as Seller, upon acceptance of said offer, agrees to sell and convey, all of that parcel ofland 
described below, together with any buildings and improvements thereon (referred to as "the Property"), 
upon the following terms and conditions: 

1. PROPERTY: A portion Iredell County PIN 4745-43-9618.000, more commonly known as 1213 Free 
Nancy Ave and all of Iredell County PIN 4745-54-1924.000, more commonly known as 1203 Free Nancy 
Ave, Statesville, North Carolina. 

Deed Reference: Iredell County, NC Deed Book 2464, Page 1337 (PIN 4745-43-9618.000) 
Iredell County, NC Deed Book 2087, Page 2451 (PIN 4745-54-1924.000) 

2. PURCHASE PRICE: The purchase price is $ 650,000 and shall be paid as follows: 
(a)$ 32,500 EARNEST MONEY DEPOSIT paid by check upon execution of this 

contract, to be deposited and held by Buyer's Attorney until the sale is closed, 
at which time it will be credited to Buyer, or until this contract is otherwise 
terminated. In the event of breach of this contract by Seller, upon Buyer's 
request, all earnest money shall be returned to Buyer, but such return shall not 
affect any other remedies available to Buyer for such breach. In the event 
this offer is accepted and Buyer breaches this contract, then all earnest money 
shall be forfeited to Seller, but receipt of such forfeited earnest money shall 
not affect any other remedies available to Seller for such breach. 

(b)$ 617,500 

3. CONDITIONS: 

Remainder of the purchase price paid in cash, certified check or wired funds 
due at closing. 

(a) At the time of execution of this offer to purchase, there are twelve {12) parking spaces available. 
Buyer must maintain those twelve parking spaces and create eight (8) additional parking spaces for a total 
of twenty (20) parking spaces if Buyer ever develops the land. Mamtenance of these parking spaces shall 
be the Buyer's responsioility and all parking space shall be maintained in a similar or better condition as 
of the signing of this offer to purchase. These twelve (12) parking spaces shall, pursuant to deed 
restrictions at closing, be dedicated to the City for public use of the greenway and recreational space 
during daylight hours. 

(i) By signing this offer to purchase, Buyer agrees to such deed restrictions being added at closing. 
The eight_ (8) ~dditional parking i;paces shall be in a similar location to the twelve (12) parking spaces 
current1y m existence. 

(ii) Buyer agrees that these deed restrictions shall run with the land and that these parking spaces 
shall be forever dedicated for City use of the green way space during daylight hours. 
{b) Buyer agrees to provide and install a minimum of six ( 6) cfirectional signs to the greenway noting 
the way to the trailhead as well as noting that greenway usage is from sunrise to sunset. 
(c) All deeds of trust, liens and other charges against the Property, not assumed by Buyer, must be 
paid and satisfied by Seller pric,r to or at closing such that cancellation may be l?romptly obtained 
following closing. Seller shall remain obligated to obtain any such cancellations followmg closing. 
(d) Title must be delivered at closing by Special Warranty Deed, and must be fee simple marketable 
title, free of all encumbrances e1:cept: ad valorem taxes for the current year; utility easements, access 
easements, right of way and un, · olated restrictive covenants; and such other encumbrances as may be 
assumed or specifically approved 1 >y Buyer. The Property must have legal access to a public right of way. 
(e) By signing this offer to p, rchase, Buyer understands and awees that there is a billboard currently 
on the Property owned by Arncsoh Park Associates Partnership. This billboard will remain the property of 
Arneson Park Associates Partne:· ,hip, will be surveyed out, and will not be conveyed to the Buyer at 
closing. Buyer understands that · hey are accepting the property with the billboard on it and that any 
development of the Property will have to be completed around the billboard. 

(i) Reference to the billb : ard will be made in the deed at time of closing as excepted out of the 
Property conveyance. 

Page 91 of 109



(t) Buyer understands that there is currently a NCDOT right of way on the property, and that Seller 
will make best efforts to abandon the right of way either before or simultaneously with closing on the 
Property. 
(g) Buyer acknowledges that Lane Construction Coml?any, at the time of signing this offer to 
purchase, has a lease on the prope1ty. Buyer understands that 1t shall honor the terms and conditions of the 
least agreement with Lane Construction Company through the term of the lease agreement. The lease 
agreement is attached as Exhibit A. · 
(h) Buyer acknowledges the existence of a Duke Power Right of Way across the property and any 
development of Buyer will have to be in accordance with the current Duke Power Right of Way across the 
Property. 
(i) Seller shall retain an easement of approximately 50' from the top of the bank on the Western 
portion of PIN 4745-54-1924.000. This easement shall be surveyed and recorded prior to or simultaneous 
with closing on this Property. This easement shall be referenced in the deed and Buyer shall honor the 
easement with any future development. 
(j) Buyers are only purchasing a portion of 1213 Free Nancy Ave/ PIN 4745-43-9618.000. The 
southern portion of 1213 Free Nancy Ave/ PIN 4745-43-9618.000 will be separated from the remaining 
portion of the parcel and will be retained by the City as City property. This will be surveyed out at 
closing. 

4. PRORATIONS AND ADJUSTMENTS: Unless otherwise provided, the following items shall 
be prorated and either adjusted between the parties or paid at closmg: (a) Ad Valorem taxes on real 
property shall be prorated on a calendar year basis up until the date of Closing (b) all utilities shall be paid 
by Seller through date of Closing ( c) any lease payments credited to Seller through date of Closing. 

5. CLOSING EXPENSES: Seller shall pay for preparation of a deed and all other documents 
necessary to perform Seller's obligations under this Agreement, excise tax (revenue stamps) and 
Broker's commissions. Buyer shall pay recording costs, costs of any title search, title insurance, the 
cost of a new survey and inspection expenses. Each party shall pay its own attorney's fees. 

6. EVIDENCE OF TITLE: Seller agrees to use its best efforts to deliver to Buyer as soon as 
reasonably possible after the acceptance of this offer, a copy of survey, and deed relating to the Property 
in possession of or available to Seller. 

7. LABOR AND MATERIAL: Seller shall furnish at closing an affidavit and indemnification 
agreement in form satisfactory to Buyer's title insurance company showing that all labor and materials, if 
any, furnished to the Property within 120 days prior to the date of closing have been paid for and agreeing 
to indemnify Buyer and Buyer's title insurance company against all loss from any cause or claim arising 
there from. 

8. PROPERTY INSPECTIONS: 
(a)Property Inspection: Seller agrees to use best efforts to deliver to Buyer copies of all leases, studies, 
reports, surveys and other information currently in Seller's possession. Buyer shall have the option of 
inspecting or obtaining, at Buyer's expense, third party inspections to determine whether utilities, zoning, 
environmental matters, soil conditions, title and survey matters are suitable for Buyer's intended use. 
Inspections must be completed on or before Auaust 15, 2023 . If the results of 
those inspections are not accept'lble to Buyer, at uyer 's sole discretion, Buyer may terminate this 
contract by giving written notice of termmation to Seller on or before 5:00 PM EST 

August 15. 2023 and Buyer shall be entitled to retain all of the earnest money 
deposit.Should buyer termmate after this inspection date, then all Buyer earnest money shall be forfeited. 
(b)Acceptance: CLOSING SHALL CONSTITUTE ACCEPTANCE OF THE PROPERTY IN AS 
iS/WHERE IS CONDITION. The· Property is being conveyed by Seller in AS IS/WHERE IS 
condition without representation or warranty, express or implied, as to the condition thereof, the 
merchantability thereof or the fitness thereof for any particular use or purpose, and Seller is under 
no obligation to repair any portion of the Property. 

9. REASONABLE ACCESS: Seller will provide reasonable access to Buyer or Buyer's representatives 
for_ the purposes _of insp_ection and/or evaluation of the Property. Buyer will hold Seller harmless for its 
actions or the actions of its employees or agents. 

Page 92 of 109



10. CLOSING: Closing shall be defined as the date and time of recording of the deed. All parties agree 
to execute any and all documents and papers necessary in connection with closing and transfer of title on 
or before August 31, 2023 at the office of Buyer's attorney, or as designated by 
Buyer. Seller may elect to close m escrow via overnight delivery of documents. The deed is to be made to 
Buyer or as directed by Buyer. 

11. POSSESSION: Possession shall be delivered at Closing. 

12. ASSIGNMENT: Buyer may assign this contract only with the written consent of Seller, but if 
assigned, then this contract shall be binding on the assignee and his heirs and successors. 

13. PARTIES: This contract shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties, 
Buyer and Seller and their heirs, successors and assigns. As used herein, words in the singular include the 
plural and the masculine includes the feminine and neuter genders, as appropriate. 

14. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This contract contains the entire agreement of the parties and there 
are no representations, inducements or other provisions other than those expressed herem. All changes, 
additions or deletions hereto must be in writing and signed by all parties. 

15. EXECUTION: This offer shall become a binding contract when signed by both Buyer and 
Seller. This contract is executed under seal in signed multiple originals, all of which together constitute 
one and the same instrument, with a signed original being retained by each party, and the parties adopt the 
word "SEAL" beside their signatures below. This offer remains open for acceptance by Seller for five (5) 
days after the date signed by Buyer, and the offer shall terminate if it is not so accepted. Seller shall 
promptly return to Buyer a signed counterpart of this contract after Seller signs it. 

16. INDEMNITY: The Seller indemnifies and holds harmless the Buyer and the Buyer's heirs, 
assigns, successors, employees, officei;s, agents or any related party to Buyer, from any and all actions, 
causes of action, suits, claims and losses of any nature relating to or from the operations or activities of 
Buyer subsequent to the closing date. The Buyer indemnifies and holds harmless the Seller and the 
Seller's heirs, assigns, successors, employees, officers, agents or any related party to Seller, from any and 
all actions, causes of action, suits, claims and losses of any nature relating to or from any and all 
conditions of the Property existing at the closing date. 

Seller: City of Statesville, a Municipal Corporation Buyer: 

By: (SEAL) B~: ~ (SEAL) 
Name: Name: Jay (Jimmy) Patel 
Title: Title: Managing Member 

Address: 1137 Morland Drive, 
Statesville, NC 28677 

Date: 2023 Date: May 3, 2023 

Page 93 of 109



I 
:A

 J
 
~
 

J. . 
.....

... 

Vld
flllW

',_
, 

-
M

o
tt

o
 .
.
.
 

■
 

I 
te

tm
'f

' C
D

nW
'Y

 T
I1

M
' n

t1
: 1

1"
1.A

Tf
'C

NI
I: 
~
 .
A

N
 

IX
C

l!
P

T
IO

N
1

0
..

,,
.M

.-
:>

M
9

IO
N

 ~
C

l
l
"
C

IT
Y

O
I'

 

OW
U\I

LL
£--

,.
._

.,
_

 
°"

"' 
IT

A
T

U
Y

ll.
L

E
. N

O
ff

n
i C

M
O

U
N

A
 

.
.
.
 11

11
1t

!O
nf

nl
 

--- :::-
=-=

=-=
--=

 .. :::
,;.-

:-.a
:-~

 
.. ....

.. ~ ..
... -·

.....
, 

--
-

;;;
;;;

;;;
;;.

 

..
--

-..~
'""

-~
e 

.
.
 .tU

. .
.
.
 •
'n

m
t
~

l
M

T
•
 

~
c
a

r
ft

lH
ff

-
-
l>

E
C

N
IJ

ll
:C

I'
 

,-
..-

..m
-.

._
.-

,a
aa

m
m

le
ll

!C
II

 
1

1
/D

lM
T

• f
B

ll!
9I

I' 
A

O
II

IN
!D

G
l:

T
I1

11
M

T
 

M
D

 a
u

..
o

n
a

T
lO

R
C

IJ
I P

IB
J
c
r N

D
 O

l!ll
!D

. 

O
T

T
r.

lQ
l"

l9
fl

la
-.

a
ra

m
"
"
"
1

' 

~-
1

n
te

r
st

D
~

 
--=

=::-
- ,.e
.. 

L 
'N

..
.,

_
..

..
.-

,S
O

Q
!S

t.
a

w
m

a
ll
J
lO

C
a

M
ti

Z
N

l)
lf

a
M

.,
,.

_
.,

 ..
 N

I
I
)
 

..
..

, J
1

1
IO

ID
J,

 9
'l

t:
IM

 om
w

--
.. 

~-
1

n
te

rs
ta

te
 4

0
 

""'=
--~

w:
,.:=

.-' 
J\

l t\\
 

... _
,.

 
t"

!Y
Q

IJ
T

A
T

'a
l.

&
I'

 
D

,&
2

4
M

_
,C

.I
D

1
 

1.
 1

H
II

 r=
l'C

T
T

' f
f ~

l
a
 ll

tt
rM

!l
&

R
C

II
ID

ff
rl

lW
A

~
a
!'

~
 

-«
II

 ll
lf

fl
!l

ll
l'
.:

x
a

W
D

N
l'
ll
ld

'f,
 

1
J
D

l,
S

•S
D

1
'f

A
U

~
c
m

a
s
.a

&
O

'l
e

ll
fl

E
IC

1
ID

 

4.
n

lt
ll

m
!'

r!
!D

P
ll

:l
fl

l!
U

Y
O

C
l!

S
m

'l
'l

.l
!W

II
W

IT
'l

t!
U

.S
.~

C
F

II
T

S
:l

ll
1

 
.'

fD
II

II
L

ll
!G

lf
fl

lf
l1

1
1

1
T

a
:f

U
a

l.
 

5.
 ..

_
U

ll
ll
..

-n
'.

..
.n

ll
e

w
ta

i•
tc

rM
:N

rU
.Y

IL
M

'f
lD

. 
11

D
M

N
D

l.
a!

l_
l#

B
,..

.o
m

a•
on

a1
11

11
B

. 

S
l"

A
'T

IO
P

JO
m

tC
M

O
JI

M
 

..
..

.,
_

a
,u

m
 

-,w
 • ..

-
m

a
r
,~

C
II

O
'f

tl
M

ff
T

IB
M

T
 

a
l_

_
.l

N
a

"
"
'a

J
II

D
M

II
C

ll
,_

M
 

A
aU

I.
.M

M
'I

N
D

!L
II

IB
.M

'I
' .
.
.
.
.
.
 

~
'T

M
 M

T
K

)O
,N

l!
C

II
IO

N
 IS

 1
: I

O
w

a;
 lM

I\
T

 
~

0
..

..
.S

IO
fU

IW
E

'f
lD

.-
:I

H
D

M
IM

 
--

1
.a

B
fl

lD
'm

D
 ..

:1
1

 a
tQ

II
M

T
D

I 
P

O
.N

ii
• 

ID
C

&
Ja

7,
"
'2

J
m

.•
D

X
M

M
. 

M
i1

E
I.

D
7

'™
'T

1
N

lf
\A

T
 .
.
 .
.
.
.
.
,
,
 .
.
 

M
X

D
D

II
M

:E
w

m
tC

:S
.4

7-
JI

IM
#W

C
II

D
. 

W
ff

ll
ll

 N
fl

D
M

J
\a

, I
U

!l
:I

S
T

M
T

D
I .

..
.,

._
 

.W
:,

M
,.

,-
IM

,E
M

,C
l'

N
"l

a
,a

D
J.

 

~
W

.M
A

T
n

e
W

~
..

,_
.,

C
l!

ln
V

'f
''
™

"
T

lH
I!

 
~
 IS

 0
,
 .t

N
O

n
B

. C
l1

1
D

ll
ff,

 s
u

o
t M

 T
IE

 
Jl

l!!
IC

D
W

N
A

TI
C

N
 O

P
 e

a:
rr

w
rG

 ,-
:a

s
, A

 C
D

.l
lT

 
Q

ID
II

II
IB

)9
..

IM
!Y

, 
O

il
 0

'1
1

ta
 lW

l!
P

n
0

N
ll

0
1

1
«

 
D

U
'W

C
[T

'm
N

 D
I"

 S
U

ID
N

'II
IIC

Jlr
il 

IN
 IC

ID
ID

IU
IC

I!
 w

m
t 

G
.S

.4
7

-J
O

O
,O

lX
C

O
. ,,,,
,~

;I ·~
 

ff 
i~

 D
. 

;
:
:

L-
-4

4
,1

4
:S

 

,:~
).~

tJ 
,,,,

,,,~
fi?

1,,
,,, ..

.. 'i 
0
re

l m
l"

0r
y 

• 
~

l 
f,

r 
R>

:c
«d

,1
¥.

J 
fl

-•
t'

·J
.\

 

--
~
 

- fAI. l!ICIST
N

 ~
 .
.
.
 

M
·

P
O

IP
V

t:
l'

C
U

D
 

IR
S

•J
II

D
N

-.
.,

ID
' 

J
II

U
l•

J
ll
li
l)

N
--

fO
.N

) 
N

n
-

m
T

lO
IC

N
.!

 
JIC

II'
. 
M

l
~

~
 P

'IP
f 

'T
M

•
'l
O

ll
!m

o
m

 
W

W
•
IU

G
N

T
O

l"
•'

f 
m

-
lD

•f
fl

lU
IN

ll
'I

I 
•

-m
.lm

l>.
....

-
(.

t 
•

L
&

ff
P

Q
.R

 
-U

.
•

P
O

W
l!

!R
l'0

U
 

.. _,_ .........
. 

I I \ I I \ 

,..
 __

 
Q

'I
T

C
l'
S

IJ
l~

 
D

.I
.D

7
,P

G
.:

:t
ff

l.
 

"""
"' ...

 
(
5

3
-

.-'
M

IS
F.

) 
(1

.2
2

4
A

C
.)

 

!\·
 ',i
 l ":i 

-
L

a
t2

 

-M
 

(5
6

,0
1

5.
3

2
 S

F
.)

 
(U

8
6

A
C

.)
 

,,
 

..
..

 _'!
'JL

 
I 

l 
,.,

 
~
 I 

I 
,.

._
,_

,,
._

 
X

 

/

,, 
~

-
-

• .
,.

~
/ 

/ 
-.

=
t=

 
/ 

,/
 

_M
,.,

 

1.,
u

 
o

..
.,

_
 

.,
._

,_
. 

N
ew

 L
at

 I
 

C
ff

lO
I'

 .
..

..
..

..
. 

o
.&

.-
-.

.9
1

G
.1

D
1

 
-
.M

 
,
r
~

~
 

PD
t4

1f
fl

ot
11

24
 

N
ew

 L
at

2 
a

T
Y

C
llf

fA
1

1
5

W
J
.l

 a
lT

O
IS

Q
'T

II
W

ll,
l.

f 
0

.&
.M

M
.N

.U
J7

 
o.

a.
a
,,

,c
;.

i.
. 

m
ta

>
:H

 
'I

D
II

IS
lt

H
 

I 
I .,, T
a

ll
l-

3
5,

9
2

4.
2

1
 S

f.
 

0
.8

2
5

 A
C

. 

'2
ol

,e
&

7.
&

I 
S

F
 

4
.7

U
3

A
C

. 

.1.
 I

JO
R

D
A

N
 

1'
:i 

G
R

A
N

T
 

EN
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G
• 

S
U

R
V

E
Y

IN
G

 •
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 

JO
R

D
A

N
 G

R
A

N
T

 &
A

S
S

O
C

IA
T

E
S

, 
P

U
C

 
P.

O
. B

O
X

 1
51

 •
S

T
A

T
E

S
V

IL
LE

.N
C

 2
88

87
 

m
ot

tg
.a

it
O

p
d

oi
.,

.a
L

a,
m

 (7
04

) 
92

1-
79

19
 

F
IR

M
 t 

P
-1

22
7 

... .
.-

1
9

M
n

e
r
t'

O
l'

-
~

l'
D

I
 

D
.&

D
l,

fl
ll
j,

.
-
M

 

,#
' 

,-~
 /

~
 

¼
;-

-.
.,

. 
,'

 ---
• ---

---
--

_
, __

 
a
T

Y
O

l
'

,O
a
;J

l(
ll

ll
 

~
N

.C
.2

11
11

7 

ll0
 

1
0

0
 

1
1

0
 

--
-

-
--

-
-

R
E!

C
D

41
JN

A
TJ

O
N

 P
l.

A
T

F
O

R
: 

C
it

y 
o

f S
ta

~
es

vi
lle

 
D

U
W

N
B

'r
:l

JC
 

0
B

IC
E

D
 If

: W
M

l 

PD
il: 

N
O

: 1
11

55
41

1M
 • 

1
'N

5
1

.a
 

SU
R

Y
EY

l»
.lE

: M
-&

20
iZ

3 

--
-

1'1
1.

f: 
2I

IU
ID

7H
IC

2 
U

D
J
•m

J
A

ll
!!

iM
tY

 A
w

.f
fl

~
fi

l:
'l
ll
li
T

1
 

Sf
A

T
E

ltl
U

T
O

M
l!

H
P

-
Dt

ED
8.

1.
 C

DJ
NI

Y
-

d
T

H
 C

A
l0

IM
4 

Page 94 of 109



Page 95 of 109



Page 96 of 109



Page 97 of 109



Page 98 of 109



Page 99 of 109



Page 100 of 109



MINUTE BOOK 24, PAGE 525    
CITY OF STATESVILLE PRE-AGENDA MEETING – December 13, 2012 
CITY HALL – 227 S. CENTER STREET, STATESVILLE, NC – 4:30 P.M. 
STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Mayor Constantine H. Kutteh presiding: 

Council Present: J. Johnson, West, Eisele, M. Johnson, Stallard, Gregory

Council Absent: Huggins, Matthews 

Staff Present:  Pressley, Fugett, Salmon, Gaines, Smyth, Bullins, Miglin, Currier,   
Pritchard, Harrell, Collins, Ashley, Hodges, Morris, Watts, Hudson, Davis 

Media Present: Jim McNally-Statesville Record & Landmark 

Others: 2 

Call to Order 
Mayor Kutteh called the meeting to order and advised there would be an Executive Session 
held following the pre-agenda meeting to discuss a property acquisition matter and an economic 
development matter and to preserve the attorney-client privilege for both.  He stated item VII will 
be removed from the agenda and a request from Statesville Flying Service, Inc. to lease the City 
owned former Michael Waltrip hangar at the airport would be added in its place.  Mayor Kutteh 
reviewed the Consent Agenda as follows:  

Consent Agenda – All items below are considered to be routine by City Council and will be 
enacted by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion on these items unless a Council 
member so requests, in which event, the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and 
considered with the other items listed in the Regular Agenda. 

A. Approve the minutes of the November 29, 2012 Pre-agenda Meeting and the
December 03, 2012 City Council meeting.

B. Certify roster of personnel in the Fire Department.
There was no discussion regarding this item.

C. Consider approving a request to transfer $6,520 from the Drug Seizure
Fund for the purchase of an outdoor camera system and approval of
Budget Amendment #19.
Chief Watts explained this system will replace the existing camera system that is
no longer operational.  It is a rapidly deployable, weather resistant pole camera
made for covert crime surveillance and is designed to be covertly mounted to
identify suspects in high crime areas including high drug areas or areas suffering
reoccurring property crimes.  The system uses a cellular modem which will
require a standard data plan to be paid for through the departmental budget.  The
video evidence will be monitored and recorded at a determined police
department location.  The camera will be vital to conducting real time narcotics
related surveillance in predetermined locations while reducing the danger to law
enforcement personnel by conducting the surveillance at a remote location.

Page 101 of 109



Consider accepting a land gift from Arneson Park Associates Partnership, represented 
by David L. Pressly, Jr. 
Brendon Pritchard stated that David L. Pressly, Jr., representing Arneson Park Associates 
Partnership, contacted staff regarding donating some property off Free Nancy Avenue, to the 
City for recreation and park uses. The North Carolina Department of Transportation purchased 
a portion of their property fronting Interstate 40 for the widening project. The remainder of this 
property lies to the west, east and south of the property Carmike Theaters donated to the City. 
The portion of property to the east of our lot contains additional asphalt parking that adjoins our 
paved lot and the other parcels of land are adjacent to our Museum Greenway.  Staff 
recommends that the  property be accepted and a deed prepared for execution by Arneson Park 
Associates Partnership.  Mr. Pritchard stated the total acreage is approximately 4.2 acres. 
Council members agreed there is no disadvantage to accepting this. 

Council agreed by consensus to move this item to the Consent Agenda. 

Conduct a courtesy hearing and consider adopting a Small Area Plan for the Brookdale 
Drive, Oakdale Drive and Hartness Road Corridors. 
Sherry Ashley reminded City Council that they had requested that staff conduct a Small  Area 
Plan for the Brookdale Road area due to a rezoning request submitted in  December of 2011.  
The rezoning request for five parcels along Brookdale Drive, submitted by Mary Jo Crandall, 
Joseph Beaver and Edward Johnson was tabled until a small area plan could be completed.  
The Planning Board’s recommendation is favorable with a unanimous vote as presented and 
three citizens asked questions during the Planning Board courtesy hearing.  Mrs. Ashley briefly 
summarized the information contained in the Plan. 

Council member Gregory asked how the residents in the area felt about this.  Mrs. Ashley 
stated this will be the third public hearing for this and there has been some opposition but the 
residents see that it is necessary.  Mayor Kutteh pointed out that regardless of what plan the 
City puts in place, the subdivision rules will protect the neighborhood even further. 

Council member Eisele asked when the seven lots will be rezoned.  Mrs. Ashley replied that 
she did not recommend it be done immediately.  Mayor Kutteh asked if the approval of the 
Small Area Plan changes the zoning.  Mrs. Ashley replied it did not and that Council must un-
table the rezoning request for the five parcels along Brookdale Drive before they can be 
rezoned.  Mrs. Ashley explained this is basically a ten year plan, does not change any zoning 
and when a rezoning request is received Council can refer  to the plan to determine if this is 
something it wants to do.  The plan also gives the neighborhood some assurance that 
properties probably will not be rezoned beyond the recommended logical boundary shown on 
the plan. 

Consider a request from Brad Kesolowski/Penske Racing for assignment of the Evernham 
Hangar Lease. 

This item was removed from the agenda 

Page 528 

Consider approving a request from the Statesville Flying Service to lease what is known 
as the “Michael Waltrip hangar” owned by the City of Statesville on a month to month 
basis at the rate of $1,000 per month with a 30-day “notice to vacate” clause. 
Mr. Collins explained this request was made previously in May but was removed from the 
agenda at that time.  Staff recently received an offer from another party and realized there was 
still an offer on the table from the Statesville Flying Service for $1,000 per month, on a month to 

Page 102 of 109

Brenda Fugett
Highlight

Brenda Fugett
Highlight



Page 103 of 109



Page 104 of 109



Page 105 of 109



Page 106 of 109



CITY COUNCIL ACTION REQUEST 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Ron Smith, City Manager 

DATE: May 4, 2023 

ACTION NEEDED ON:  May 15, 2023 
      (Date of Council Meeting) 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Receive the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 recommended Budget from the City Manager and staff 
and set a public hearing on the budget for June 5, 2023 at 7:00 p.m. Consider setting Board 
Workshop sessions on June 6, 2023, June 7, 2023, and June 8, 2023 from 4:00 p.m. to 7:00 
p.m.

1. Summary of Information: The proposed budget will be presented at the meeting.

2. Previous Council or Relevant Actions: Council annually approves the City’s Operating
Budget as required by NCGS 159-13.

3. Budget/Funding Implications:  This budget sets forth the expected revenues balanced
against expected expenditures for the City’s operating funds for Fiscal Year 2023-2024.

4. Consequences for Not Acting:  Violation of NCGS 159-13 or begin the path to an interim
budget under NCGS 159-16.

5. Department Recommendation:  Receive the budget as presented, set the Public Hearing
and determine workshop sessions.

6. Manager Comments: At the meeting I will go through the required budget message and the
budget books will be presented after the meeting for your review. I will also identify dates and
times for the budget review meetings.

7. Next Steps: Instruct City Clerk to make the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Manager’s Recommended
Budget available for public viewing. Advertise Public Hearing 10 days in advance of June 5,
2023.

8. Attachments:  None

Page 107 of 109



Page 1 of 2 

Airport Commission  
Minutes 

City Hall– Conference Room 
April 12, 2023 – 12:00pm 

The Statesville Airport Commission met on Wednesday, April 12, 2023, at the Statesville City 
Hall Conference Room. 

Members Present: Steve Johnson, Mike Colyer, Bob Saltzman, David Bullins, David 
Stamey, Todd Bodel. Absent: Gene Houpe 

Staff Present: John Ferguson 

Others Present: Pete Sistare CATS, Bob Thompson, Victory Air, Jon McCalmont 
Parrish and Partners, David Crowder, Jet East, Angie Proctor, Jet 
East, Roger Ayscue, Civil Air Patrol, Scott Powell, Civil Air Patrol 

Roll Call 
Chairman Steve Johnson called the meeting to order at 12:00 PM. 

Minutes of March 8, 2023 Meeting:  
Mr. Stamey made a motion to approve the March 8, 2023, meeting minutes, seconded by Mr. Colyer. 
The motion carried unanimously. 

Airport Operations Report 
Mr. Ferguson gave a brief update on the NCAA Airports Conference. There were 477 attendees and 
42 exhibitors. Jet east is continuing to hire employees and they expect the first airplane to arrive for 
maintenance tomorrow. Currently the runway is closed for re-marking. PAPI’s have been relocated 
to the new runway end as was the REIL’s. Mr. Ferguson passed out a 3rd quarter financial report. 
Please note that $200,000 was temporarily transferred to the airport improvement fund which will be 
reimbursed before June 30. 

Terminal Contractor Selection Committee met on April 11 and selected Samet Contractors out of 
Greensboro. Barnhill Construction and G.L. Wilson were the other two firms that were interviewed. 
Samet will be working with Mitchell College Electrical students and HVAC students to get actual 
experience. 

NCAA will host Legislative Day on April 25 if anybody is interested in attending. NCDOT Aviation will 
be visiting for their annual site visit. He will meet with staff on April 21. David Gagnon will take over 
Iredell Air Care. 

Projects Update 

Mr. McCalmont gave an update on the current construction projects. 

• Target for safety area completion is May 1, 2023. Working with FAA for the flight check.

Page 108 of 109



Page 2 of 2 

• Localizer is close to being installed. Clearway will be approved at the same time as flight
check.

• East Corporate hangar is close to going out to bid. Hangar will have a sprinkler system and
not a foam system. Bids to be advertised in late May. Engineer is looking into additional GPU
connections.

• East Corporate Apron is nearly complete. The contractor has some small ponding areas they
will have to correct. Sidewalk is soon to be installed. Finishing up the storm pond.

• Terminal Building- Architect expects to have 30% plans ready for the new contractor.

• Taxiway lighting project is 99% complete.

Old Business 
Mr. Johnson said our elected officials are working hard to get us additional funds for needed projects. 

Adjourn 
Mr. Colyer moved to adjourn, and Dr. Saltzman seconded. Meeting ended at 12:28 PM. 

Page 109 of 109


	Photos-Demo Structure at Mt Zion AME Church.pdf
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4




